Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

LEEDS CITY REGION ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP
BOARD

MEETING TO BE HELD AT 2.00 PM ON WEDNESDAY, 28 APRIL 2021
DUE TO COVID-19, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY AND
WILL BE LIVESTREAMED HERE:
https:/lwww.youtube.com/channel/UCazjNSGpgZZT41Vibn2ZK9A/live
(COPY AND PASTE THE LINK IN YOUR BROWSER)

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with the requirements of the LEP Board Members’ Code of
Conduct, members have an obligation to review their register of interests
before each meeting and to declare any interests.

If an interest has not been entered onto the LEP’s register, then members
must disclose the interest at any meeting at which they are present and where
they have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and where the
matter is not a sensitive interest.

3. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 FEBRUARY 2021
(Pages 1 - 8)

5. ECONOMIC REPORTING
(Led by: Alan Reiss, Author: James Hopton)

(Pages 9 - 36)

6. COVID-19
(Led by: Brian Archer, Author: lan Smyth)
(Pages 37 - 44)

7. LEP CAPITAL PROGRAMME (INVESTMENT COMMITTEE)
(Led by: Melanie Corcoran)
(Pages 45 - 60)



10.

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
(Led by: Angela Taylor, Author: Caroline Allen)
(Pages 61 - 74)

For Information

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMBINED AUTHORITY

HELD ON 9 MARCH 2021
(Pages 75 - 84)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on 9 June 2021



Agenda Item 4

Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
LEEDS CITY REGION ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD
HELD REMOTELYON WEDNESDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 2021

Present:
Roger Marsh OBE DL (Chair)

Helen Featherstone
Kate Hainsworth

Amir Hussain (Public Representative)
Rashik Parmar MBE

Professor Simon Pringle

Kamran Rashid

Mandy Ridyard

Mark Roberts (Deputy Chair)
Joanna Robinson

Andrew Wright

Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe
Councillor Shabir Pandor
Councillor Tim Swift MBE

In attendance:
Peter Mucklow
Eve Roodhouse
Councillor Paula Widdowson
Ben Still
Caroline Allen
Brian Archer
Melanie Corcoran
Alan Reiss
Angela Taylor
lan Smyth
Patrick Bowes
Sarah Bowes
James Flanagan
Sonya Midgley
Julie Haigh
Ruth Chaplin

Leeds City Region Enterprise
Partnership

Private Sector member

Private sector member and LEP
Diversity Champion

Private sector member

Private sector member and Chair,
Employment & Skills Panel

Private sector member and Chair,
Green Economy Panel

Private sector member

Private sector member

Private sector member

Private sector member

Private sector member and Chair,
Business Innovation & Growth Panel

Bradford Council

Kirklees Council

Calderdale Council

LEP Senior Sponsor

Leeds City Council

City of York Council

LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority
LEP/West Yorkshire Combined Authority



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Shirley Congdon, Kully Thiarai,
Baroness Blake and Councillor Jeffery.

In noting Baroness Blake’s apologies the Chair advised that Councillor
James Lewis was to be the new Leader of Leeds City Council. Confirmation
regarding Baroness Blake’s replacement on the LEP Board was awaited.

Declarations of Interest

In accordance with the requirements of the LEP Board Members’ Code of
Conduct, Members were reminded of their obligations to review their
individual register of interests before each LEP Board meeting and to declare
any interests.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

There were no items on the agenda requiring the exclusion of the press and
public.

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2021

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2021 be
approved.

Economic Reporting

The Board considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy and
Communications which provided an update on the latest economic and
business intelligence and activity and intelligence around understanding the
impact of COVID-19 and EU Exit.

Members discussed the latest data and a copy of the Leeds City Region
COVID-19 Insights Report was attached at Appendix 1.

It was noted that the 2021 Leeds City Region Business Survey was being
undertaken and this focussed on understanding businesses’ views and
experiences in relation to the pandemic and the end of EU transitions. The
findings of the survey will be reported to a future meeting.

Resolved: That the latest intelligence around the economic impacts of
COVID-19 and EU Exit be noted.

Covid-19: Economic Recovery and Response
The Board considered a report of the Director, Economic Services which

provided an update on developments around the COVID-19 crisis, including
the delivery of products and services in response.



87.

Members noted the support being made available to businesses including
employment and skills support which was outlined in the report. They
discussed the review of the Economic Recovery Plan which was currently
being undertaken to reflect the impacts of the crisis including the
development of a distinct proposition focussed on culture and the creative
arts which was welcomed by Members. A revised version would be brought
to a future meeting.

The Combined Authority had approved £13.5 million of gainshare funding to
support immediate priority recovery programmes around skills and retraining.
It was reported that a further three programmes would be considered at the
Authority’s next meeting and the Board endorsed the areas of focus for
investment to kickstart progress on the key gaps which were detailed in the
report.

Resolved:
0] That the progress on delivering the response to the crisis be noted.

(i) That the steps being taken to develop a second version of the West
Yorkshire Economic Recovery Plan, including the development of a
distinct proposition focussed on culture and the creative arts be noted.

(i)  That the three areas of focus for investment to kickstart progress on
the Recovery Plan propositions be endorsed.

Panel and Committee Reports

The Board discussed and noted the Panel reports which were presented for
information.

The Place Panel had met on 28 January 2021 and had discussed a range of
topics and the Board noted the updates provided on the development of the
Place Narrative, Brownfield Housing Fund and the delivery of the Leeds City
Region Enterprise Zones.

Members noted the LEP Capital Programme (Investment Committee) report
which provided updates on capital expenditure at quarter 3 2020/21, Growth
Deal Annual Performance Review, the Growth Deal economic development
expenditure forecasts and closure and Getting Building Fund approvals. It
was reported that the closedown of the Growth Deal portfolio was underway
and a list of the 57 economic development projects included in the
programme was attached at Appendix 1. It was noted that 15 of these had
achieved financial closure and it was anticipated that the remaining 42 would
progress through the assurance process by the end of June 2021. The
Board thanked officers for the work that had been undertaken to deliver the
projects during the Growth Deal programme.

Resolved: That the reports be noted.



88.

89.

COVID-19 Economic Recovery - Entrepreneurship

The Board considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy and
Communications on the Economic Recovery Plan’s ambitions around
Entrepreneurship.

The Board welcomed the report and Entrepreneurship proposition. The
report set out the ambition and possible approach and the Board endorsed
the three areas which had been proposed as elements of the ecosystem that
would benefit from immediate further investment.

Members discussed how opportunities and support could be provided to
inspire and engage with people from all diverse communities to set up their
own enterprises and also support existing businesses. The importance of the
challenging work to co-ordinate the programme was also considered and the
following comments were made:

e Work with organisations already involved in delivering local access
programmes

e Communicating/engagement via different platforms and have a

regional campaign to raise awareness

Work with local authorities, communities and hard to reach groups

Look at other business advice available and fill the gaps

Help small business who have problems setting up bank accounts

Have a clear strand on social entrepreneurship

Encourage start ups within the green agenda

Target all age groups

It was noted that in the absence of full Government funding, the Combined
Authority and LEP have been working on what can be done with initial local
investment. A workshop had been held in January 2021 with key
stakeholders and the first West Yorkshire Innovation Festival was being held
during 15-19 March 2021 at which a series of virtual events would be taking
place.

Resolved: That the development of Entrepreneurship support as part of the
West Yorkshire Economic Recovery Plan be noted.

Employment & Skills Plan Refresh

The Board considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy and
Communications on the refresh of the Employment and Skills Plan.

The report provided an overview and summarised the key components for
the Employment and Skills Framework. Members discussed the strategic
context, evidence base and objectives which were provided in Appendix 1
and endorsed the proposal for the revised Employment and Skills priorities to
be published as a Framework. This would set out the strategic aims of the
Leeds City Region whilst allowing flexibility to produce further detail within



90.

91.

specific plans. The Combined Authority will consider the Framework at their
meeting on 9 March 2021.

Resolved: That the proposal for the revised Employment and Skills
Framework to be published be endorsed.

Inclusive Growth

The Board considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy and
Communications on Inclusive Growth.

It was noted that at the last meeting, the LEP Board had endorsed the
Inclusive Growth Framework for adoption as part of the wider Strategic
Economic Framework.

Members considered the revised indicator dashboard which will continue to
be updated based on the practical usefulness of the indicators on tracking
the delivery of inclusive growth. An updated data set which quantifies some
of the issues, inequalities and gaps facing the Leeds City Region was
attached at Appendix 1.

The Board endorsed in principle the suggested prioritisation for possible
‘early win’ Inclusive Growth interventions from the pipeline. Details were
provided in the report and logic models for each proposed intervention ware
included at Appendix 2. Members discussed and welcomed the proposal for
the development of a Good Work Standard/Charter and the need to
encourage businesses/employers to become involved. It was noted that
each intervention/package would be subject to a rigorous value for money
appraisal and considered alongside other proposals and further development
of costs.

Resolved:

() That the LEP Board agree the addition to the Inclusive Growth
Dashboard of the indicators shown in paragraph 2.5 of the submitted
report.

(i) That the proposed ‘early win’ Inclusive Growth interventions set out in
paragraph 2.8 of the submitted be endorsed, noting that any funding
decisions rest with the Combined Authority.

LEP Budgets and Funding

The Board considered a report of the Director, Corporate Services which
provided an update on funding secured by the LEP and the position going
forward.

It was noted that the revenue budgets for 2021/22 and indicative capital
budget had been approved by the Combined Authority and included funding
secured by the LEP. It was noted that no announcements had been made



92.

regarding a successor fund to the Growth Deal and details of access to
funds such as the Levelling Up Fund are awaited. The lack of funding to
replace the Growth Deal to support the regional economic recovery was
concerning and this continues to be brought to the Government’s attention.
It was noted that many of the previous funding programmes cease in 2021
and a summary was attached at Appendix 1.

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
have confirmed 2021/22 revenue funding - £500,000 core funding and
£520,000 to support the growth hub. The Board noted the challenges of
reduced LEP funding which would leave some programmes, including
Enterprise Zones, incomplete and were disappointed that that future FE skills
capital funding will be the subject of a bidding process by colleges. It was
however noted that many of the LEP priorities will continue through the
Combined Authority and the funding secured in the devolution deal will
ensure work on areas such as the Economic Recovery Plans and Adult
Education and Skills can continue to progress.

Resolved: That the LEP Board notes the funding position.
Governance Report

The Board considered a report of the Director, Corporate Services on
governance arrangements which:

e Provided LEP Board Member with proposals to review the Chair’s
final year of tenure as per the agreement in February 2020, following
the outcome of the Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships
review.

e Sought approval to recommend to the Combined Authority the
appointment of a non-voting advisory representative of the TUC to the
Employment and Skills Panel.

It was noted that in February 2020 the current LEP Chair’s tenure had been
extended until the Annual Meeting in June 2022, subject to a light touch
review during 2020/21. Members discussed and agreed the proposals in
respect of the review which were outlined in the report including the
methodology and timescales. Roger Marsh took no part in the consideration
of the proposal. The outcome of the review would be considered by the LEP
Board at their meeting on 28 April 2021.

The Board discussed the appointment of a non-voting advisory TUC
representative to the Employment and Skills Panel. It was considered that
this would be beneficial to the work of the Panel as they would provide a vital
link and insight. It was therefore agreed to recommend such an appointment
to the Combined Authority.

Resolved:



93.

94.

95.

0] That the LEP Board approves the terms of the LEP Chair review as
outlined in paragraph 2.4 of the submitted report and for the work to
begin.

(i) That the LEP Board recommends to the Combined Authority the
appointment of a non-voting advisory representative of the TUC to the
Employment and Skills Panel.

Connectivity Plan

The Board considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy and
Communications on the West Yorkshire Connectivity Plan.

Members were updated on the plans for engagement following the recent
publication of the West Yorkshire Connectivity Infrastructure Plan, WY Mass
Transit Vision 2040 and associated documents. Public and stakeholder
engagement would continue until 11 April 2021 and details were outlined in
the report. The importance of businesses being able to feed into the
engagement was highlighted and Members were asked for any suggestions
on how to involve the business community further. It was noted that
business representatives would be invited to attend events and it was
proposed to meet with the Business Communications Group to discuss the
draft plan. An analysis of responses to the engagement would be prepared
and feedback considered by the Combined Authority.

Resolved: That the content of the Connectivity Infrastructure Plan, WY
Mass Transit Vision 2040, associated documents and plans for engagement
be noted.

Draft Minutes of the Meeting of the Combined Authority held on 4
February 2021

Resolved: That the draft minutes of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority
held on 4 February 2021 be noted.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Wednesday 28 April 2021.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

Report to: Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP Board)

Date:

28 April 2021

Subject: Economic Reporting

Director: Alan Reiss, Director of Strategy, Communications and Policing

Author: James Hopton, Economic & Transport Analysis Manager

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Purpose of this report

To provide an update on the latest economic and business intelligence for the
Board, and to update the Board on the latest activity and intelligence around
understanding the impact of COVID-19 and EU Exit.

Information

Some areas of the economy have seen increasing activity in recent weeks, as
the latest lockdown restrictions have begun to ease. Although the latest data
pre-dates the reopening of non-essential retail and outdoor hospitality, West
Yorkshire’s major town and city centres saw increasing levels of movement in
late March and early April, following the reintroduction of the “rule of six”. The
level of increase varied but was highest in Huddersfield and lowest in Leeds,
though with the exception of Huddersfield (57%) activity in the five main urban
centres remained less than 50% of each place’s pre-pandemic baseline in the
week to April 8th.

The number of vacancies being advertised online in West Yorkshire increased
in late March, and as of the week ending April 3" was 8% above the level
seen in the week of 14" March 2020. It subsequently fell back 9% in the
following week, with the Easter break likely subduing activity to some degree.

This follows data from HMRC’s Pay As You Earn Real Time Information
showing a recovery in the number of employees in West Yorkshire during the
three consecutive months between December 2020 and February 2021. The
employee count in February was almost 6,000 above its lowest point in
November 2020. However, the number of employees in February 2021 is
around 20,000 below its March 2020 level.

Meanwhile, levels of furlough use have also shown signs of falling, with 2.2%
fewer jobs furloughed in February in West Yorkshire compared to January.
The latest official data from HMRC still showed almost 140,000 jobs
furloughed in West Yorkshire in February, 14% of eligible jobs. Survey data
from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) suggests further falls in early to

9



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

mid-March. However, later in March, the decline in furlough use appeared to
plateau along with other measures of the return to work, suggesting a
relatively stable picture prior to the wider reopening of the economy.

Despite falling furlough use, the number of people claiming out of work
benefits in West Yorkshire increased by 4,800 or 5% in February, in line with a
national increase. This is the first substantial increase since spring 2020,
although it remains a relatively modest increase. The current West Yorkshire
claimant count of 110,150 is 93% higher (+53,070) than in March 2020.

ONS survey data also shows businesses’ cash position has remained
relatively stable of late, both locally and nationally, with around 34% of
businesses having less than three months cash in reserve. This appears
unaffected by recent lockdowns. There has been some improvement in
businesses reporting increasing turnover — particularly in West Yorkshire,
where the net balance has increased from -40% on 7™ February to -32.8% on
215t March. Net balances are calculated by subtracting those reporting
decreases from those reporting increases, so clearly this indicates that many
more businesses still report falling turnover than increases.

The ONS Business Insights and Conditions Survey continues to show around
55% of exporters reporting challenges trading internationally in mid-March.
This is similar to mid-January. Some issues have eased slightly in this time,
such as disruption at borders and the availability and cost of transport &
logistics. However, the demands of increased paperwork are the most
frequently mentioned issue and this was not covered specifically in the
January surveys.

EU exit issues remain the focus of much of the feedback from businesses’
conversations with Growth Managers. Specifically, around paperwork
changes, VAT returns and delays that these issues and others have caused to
deliveries. Issues with CE certification also persist, with reports of the UK and
EU authorities not recognising each other’s certifications. These issues are
having a financial impact on businesses affected, with some using significant
portions of their reserves to mitigate this. Some businesses report seeking
finance to manage through the challenges, though some report being unable
to access this, or the process taking longer than they need to make use of the
funding. Others are seeking to enact other measures to mitigate the impacts,
including investing in digitising services or expanding marketing presence to
increase activity in overseas markets.

The latest Quarterly Economic Survey with the Chambers of Commerce in
Leeds City Region for Q1 2021 emphasises these challenges, with 60% of
manufacturers and 40% of service sector exporters report challenges
exporting in recent weeks. Many manufacturers anticipate price rises on the
back of this. The vast majority of businesses who trade with the EU anticipate
that they will continue to do so. Expansion plans are more likely to be focused
elsewhere — either domestically or beyond Europe.

10



3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

12.1

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

There are no tackling the climate emergency implications directly arising from
this report.

Inclusive Growth Implications

As reported at paragraph 2.4, the number of people claiming out of work
benefits continues to increase and is nearly double the March 2020 figure.
Getting people reskilled and back into work are key objectives set out in the
West Yorkshire Economic Recovery plan.

Equality and Diversity Implications

The pandemic continues to have a disproportionately negative effect on
people on low incomes and from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic
backgrounds.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

Staffing Implications

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.
External Consultees

No external consultations have been undertaken.

Recommendations

The Board are asked to note the latest intelligence around the economic
impacts of COVID-19 and EU Exit and consider how this relates to their work
and future work plans.

Background Documents

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Leeds City Region COVID-19 Insights Report — 16™ April 2021

11



This page is intentionally left blank



West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority

COVID-19
® Fortnightly
Insights Report

Research & Intelligence
16t April 2021



Executive Summary — social and economic

= Activity appears to be increasing in many town and city centres in West Yorkshire.
Although the latest data available does not yet reliably capture the impact of the reopening
of non-essential retail and outdoor hospitality on April 121, it does suggest increased
movement in some areas following the reintroduction of household mixing on March 29,
and also coincides with the school holidays in some parts of West Yorkshire.

» |f the trend continues, it will be welcomed by consumer-facing businesses. The latest
national GDP data shows the economy grew by 0.4% in February, avoiding contraction
during a full month of lockdown, but output in consumer-facing industries remains 19%
lower than in February 2020. Output is down 7.8% across the economy as a whole.

rsSurvey data from the Office for National Statistics suggests a largely static picture in the
economy in late March, with little change in businesses trading, furlough use or the
return to usual work places as businesses awaited the easing of restrictions. Businesses’
cash position was apparently similarly stable.

» The number of vacancies posted online fell in early April, across West Yorkshire and in
most industries except hospitality and tourism. Easter may have been a factor in subduing
activity, whilst many businesses may have fulfilled their recruitment needs following recent
Increases in activity.

» Both anecdotal evidence and ONS survey data suggest EU exit issues continue to pose
challenges for many importers and exporters, with little sign of easing in the past
fortnight. Whilst some border disruptions may have lessened, paperwork and West
certification appear to be more stubborn issues. Yorkshire




Executive Summary — transport

National travel trend data shows that travel across all modes fell to some degree over
the Easter break. Excluding the impact of the Easter Holidays, levels of transport use have
steadily been climbing since the start of lockdown in England, with use of motor vehicles
increasing at a faster rate than public transport modes.

Local data on bus and rail use echoes the national trend, with a decline in use over the
Easter holidays following a period of increasing activity after schools reopened. In general
bus use is recovering faster than rail.

oBefore Easter, local bus use by all cohorts (under 19, under 26, adults, seniors, and
disabled & companion) recorded a steady increase since lockdown started in early January.

Levels of cycling and walking/running, based on data from the fitness app Strava, indicate
that considerably more trips and more people have been cycling, walking & running
so far in 2021 compared to the same periods in 2020 and 2019.

In terms of footfall trends, for data up to the 11™ April (before non-essential retail reopened),
some areas of Leeds City Centre, e.g. Dortmund Square, had already seen an
increase in footfall.

West
Yorkshire

Crarvvaimeasd
Combined
& rity

L ority




Virus prevalence — West Yorkshire trend

West Yorkshire COVID-19 daily cases
and 7-day average rate per 100k

800 Local Start of 10pm England England England
restrictions in school AUl curfew for lockdown lockdown lockdown Schools
parts of WY term € pubs & WY starts ends & starts reopened
700 of siX pars enters WY tier 3
1 1 I 1 Ty 1 i 1 1
| Pl 1o tler2 : !
x i P i i | i
S 600 i P i : i :
- 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 !
- i P i i | i
[«+] ! H 1 H 1 1 1 !
2 500 e i 4 i i
& : bl : ' : :
© i Pl i | i
> 400 A E = |
© 1 [ 1 ] H 1
© i P : ! j |
1 1 1 1
800 P : ! f: :
gm i P ! : i
S o | R | : :
— 1 1
o 200 b - i !
x : b | : ; |
100 | tA | : i
. P i i : i
| i ! I
; T i ! i |
0 —_— 1 1 L ! L
5939938330380 8555355538888855555888885585585%
1232320000 PpQQQQ00ZZ222200000 3 3 S St lE>>333<
1 1 1 1 1 ‘L 1 1 1 ] — r‘_‘- m o) I-n — 1 1 1 1 ] 1 1 1 1 1 m — '\‘ m 0) 1 ] 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 m
NY8IQEe502R5502RH8I2IQEISIRB-ERRICLAREV2I8L
Date

Data lag/incomplete

11-Apr

— WY Case Rate
—— England Case Rate
——Y&H Case Rate

As of the 7t April 2021, the 7-day moving average West Yorkshire COVD-19 rate was 71.8
cases per 100k, a 24.8% decrease compared to the previous week (from 96.6 per 100k) and
the lowest rates have been since 10" Sept 2020. In the same period, the rate in Yorkshire and
the Humber fell by 36% to 62.4 per 100k, and rates overall in England fell by 36% to 28.1 per

100k. West
. . Yorkshire
Source: Secure COVID-19 PHE data portal. Note there is a lag in the very latest data PHE COVID-19 data to account for Combined
all test results to be processed and recorded. Authority



Virus prevalence — West Yorkshire

Table shows the most recent COVID-19 case data from Public Health England's (PHE) secure data portal. Note
due to reporting delays for comparison between Local Authorities the most recent 4 days are excluded from the
calculations of rates and moving averages.

Total cases per 100k [ Total cases per Absolute % Weekly
people (1 -7 April) 100k people (25 - | Difference Change

31 March)
Most recent data
week Previous week

Bradford 79.3 103.4 -24.1 -23%
H
~  Calderdale 36.9 60.5 -23.6 -39%
Kirklees 72.1 81.2 -9.1 -11%
Leeds 70.4 99 -28.6 -29%
Wakefield 84.1 121.7 -37.6 -31%
West 71.8 96.6 -24.8 -26%
Yorkshire
Yorkshire & 62.4 88.9 -26.5 -30%
the Humber
England 28.1 43.7 -15.6 -36%
West

Yorkshire
Source: Secure COVID-19 PHE data portal i e




Rates falling across MCASs, but remain

higher in Yorkshire

Rates have fallen in all MCAs since late March.. Whilst West Yorkshire saw a sharp (31.5%) drop in cases in
the week to April 7" compared to the previous week, this was the second lowest fall among MCAs. Only
Liverpool City Region (-29.5%) saw a lower fall, with the steepest declines in West Midlands (44%) and
Greater Manchester (41.5%). The case rates in South Yorkshire (78 per 100k) and West Yorkshire (72 per
100k) are 50% higher than in the next highest MCA — Greater Manchester at 47 per 100k).

COVID-19 cases per 100k) - MCAs, whole pandemic

. ; National Schools
1200 Local | Local ! ;:‘iitl'(‘;’]?nlm lockdown retirn |
restrictions - astrictions ¢ P : :
Bfd, Cal, Kirk _| 45 @ ! P :
1000 e Tier 4 in i
] P London} Rile
= ' Tiered ! & SEas 1 of6
00 systém-W. I :
Yorks T2 |
600

400

200

Cases per 100k people - past 7 days

(=]
o
L

S
2
~

!
'
!
'
!
T
! : ;
| '
“ Lo : e ;
0 —— i I H
00 0000000 O 00000000000 =« = — — —
G qggaqao Gl g g g agraalar g aag g aq
R -] DO Aoy B O =B - T - B
U0 o aQFwS S S 3 S5 3 00 2 R 80808 0 S § @ ® 8 8 &
=2=2<<=3%53 %4 20 QQ=z=z2zn S oL ==<
0N LA T HdsWOIO2RSIT L - DD - 0o @ oW
=
oN e Ng 20 - N ~TN O NP TO - @ - - N O N O N9

28-Dec-20

Greater Manchester e liverpool City Region === North of Tyne
—\N\est Midlands ——\M\est Yorkshire e ENgland

Source: HMG / PHE Coronavirus in the UK data

Sheffield City Region

w
o
o

[
o
o

[\e]
w
o

200

150

100

Cases per 100k people - past 7 days
(4]
o

COVID-19 cases per 100k - MCAs, past two months

Rule of 6, schobl
holidays in some
areas (inc. parts of
wy |

Schools!
return |
|

«—National
lockdown

N O~ OWOLM~MODC-OWNR-TOWOMN~EOD-OWLNSNODC-OWNS— T O
OO0+~ «~ v + — NN NNOODOOO~ v~ v + NN ANNNMmO OO
Greater Manchester e liverpool City Region ss===North of Tyne Sheffield City Region

—\/\lest Midlands

e \/\lest Yorkshire e ENgland

West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



COVID-19 Rates for Upper Tier Local Authorities (UTLA’s)

7-day average COVID-19 rate per 100k population, change compared to the previous week, over 60 rate & positivity

Rolling 7-day Over 60 rate Positivity
rate per 100k per 100k (right axis)
(left axis)
+ 14 days prior ©  Lower quintile
o -
7 days prior 2nd quintile ”“l
©  3rd quintile
Most recent ®
4th quintile
®  Upper quintile

200 : :
Ranking UTLA case rates from high (left)
to low (right) reveals considerable
variation. All West Yorkshire districts are

Te o still at the high end of the spectrum in

150 1] terms of COVID-19.

Barnsley |,
A ! Newcastle
100 ? .
Wakefield J e ’
O = <
T © ' .
> 1
©
g : .
M~ r L
Leicester
50 ol
Bradford 1
Sheffield I
Kirkldes A L] T Sy i
Leeds Hull 15 icene sl
0 Manchester Newcastle .
Birmingham North Yorkshire  Liverpool
Calderdale

Rank of case rate ——»

1 1€/ T »),

1
O O ey g il
)

York
Devon

Bristol

10

Weekly positivity

0

Blue points show latest COVID-19 case rate per 100k across UTLAs as of the 7th April (left Y-axis). Vertical bars connected to these West
points denote rate last week (dark grey) and the week before (light grey). Point colour denotes the COVID-19 rate per 100k in the

over 60s. Grey bars at the bottom denote positivity (%) up to the 7th April (right Y-axis).

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



West

Yorkshire

0¢

Combined
Authority

Economic
Insights




UK economy grows in February despite

ongoing lockdown

UK GDP increased by 0.4% in February, returning to growth following a 2.2% fall in January despite the
country being in lockdown throughout the month. Construction (+1.6%) and manufacturing (+1.3%) saw
output increase at a faster pace. The picture was more static in the service sector (+0.2%), but still recorded
slight growth thanks to a small increase in output in wholesale and retail activities. Despite this, output in
consumer-facing industries remains almost 19% lower than in February 2020. Construction and production
output has recovered more strongly and is now almost 5% below pre-pandemic levels. Across the economy
as a whole, February’s GDP is 7.8% below the levels seen in February 2020, and 3.1% below the recent

recovery peak in October 2020.

N
=

-
-
o

100

o
o

80

70

60

Index of GDP (Feb 2020 = 100)

— Services total

= == == |\lanufacturing

Index of GDP, Feb 2020 - Feb 2021

'],0 (LQ Q "],0 {LQ rLQ "19

N

Q
3\)\@ CD@Q OCJ

\)Q ‘}p“" 0@0 Sb{\

P ¢e°

= = = Consumer facing services s Production total

Construction

West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



Sharp decline in vacancy count in latest

week

The number of vacancies for jobs in West Yorkshire posted online during week ending 10 April fell by 9%
compared with the previous week, based on a 4-week moving average. The Easter holidays are likely to
have played a part and employers may have already fulfilled their current recruitment needs in recent weeks.
Nationally, the number of vacancies fell by 8% (based on the moving average). The weekly vacancy count
for West Yorkshire is currently 2% below its pre-crisis level (i.e. compared with week ending March 14 2020).

7,000
6,000
N
N 5,000
S
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
) o 0O O 0
NN NN
O O O o
g qa
8555
L==<
$ T D
N — N T

Source: Labour Insight

25-Apr-2020
09-May-2020
23-May-2020

06-Jun-2020
20-Jun-2020
04-Jul-2020
18-Jul-2020
01-Aug-2020

mm Job postings

|/ NV
’f

_/

OO0 000000 O0O0
AN AN
O0O0O0O00O0O0 OO0
N AN
DoDaoogy =200
33(1)0)0000(])0)
<< QQ=z=za0n0
| A I R | | I R R |
NDoOoNOPI~—10 o
— N~ NTNoNnNO -

—4-week moving average

02-Jan-2021

16-Jan-2021
30-Jan-2021
13-Feb-2021
27-Feb-2021
13-Mar-2021
27-Mar-2021

Trend in weekly count of online job postings - West Yorkshire

\
N
o
S
<
= West
Yorkshire
Combined
Authority



Vacancies decline across local authorities and
Industries, except hospitality and tourism

Reflecting the overall West Yorkshire picture, all local authority areas saw decreases in vacancy postings in
the latest week. The biggest percentage declines were in Kirklees and Wakefield.

Weekly count of online job postings by council

2,500
2,000

1,500
Latest

1 OOB weekly change:

-T%

L

Bradford

Source: Labour Insight

4 week moving average
8%

12% e
- (1]
7%

B.m llﬂl Ilﬂl

Calderdale Kirklees Leeds Wakefield
m Count of postings w/e 14 March 2020

m Count of postings w/e 9 May 2020

0 Count of postings w/e 3 April 2021

m Count of postings w/e 10 April 2021

Weekly count of new online job postings in West Yorkshire by

occupational category - 4 week moving average
600 Latest week

-15%
500

400

o

-11%

: “ | ‘ | ‘ | ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | ;

o I | | I I I

100

i I I I II I Ilﬂl
(\ \0“9 \)cv}\o 9

13%  T% 9% 5%

-14% -9%

& &
o (\ \\
° 'b & - & \\@'
& A A A 2 0
o\“ S & &« ESC P
&8 A o ) & N ‘b-q A
& & Ny 6‘\3’ & o) o°b
S A PR
& & & B i & 3§
) & S N & -2
& nd < ~ Q
& K il
@ Ay

Source: Labour Insight

m Count of postings w/e 14 March 2020
= Count of postings w/e 9 May 2020
01Count of postings w/e 3 April 2021

m Count of postings w/e 10 April 2021

All occupational categories except Hospitality, food and tourism saw a reduction in postings for the latest
week, based on a 4-week moving average, with the largest percentage decreases for Health, Engineering,

Education and Training and Information Technology. But as noted above this is likely to reflect the impact of
the Easter holiday on recruitment activity.

Source: Labour Insight

West
Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



Business liquidations unchanged from Q4,
but higher than pre-pandemic levels

350 businesses were liquidated in West Yorkshire in the week to April 6!, down from 850 the previous week.
This may reflect the clearing of a backlog of activity at Companies House, or may reflect lower activity
around Easter. Both West Yorkshire and the UK as a whole saw a 59% fall in activity week on week. Whilst
patterns of business liquidations over the past year are disrupted by intermittent cessations of activity at
Companies House, the 5,140 businesses liquidated in West Yorkshire in Q1 2021 is similar to the 5,200
events in Q4 2020. It is however 20% higher than in Q1 2020.

Business liquidations / dissolutions - West Yorkshire Business liquidations / dissolutions by quarter
1200 End of temporary 2500
/ measures to reduce
¥ insolvencies
1000
N Activity 2000

paused at
800 h Companies

House 4

1500

1000

0|.|L||.|L L

50

o

Bradford Calderdale Kirklees Leeds Wakefield
I \Veekly total =4 week moving average
Source: FAME, Bureau van Dijk, 2021 1Q12020 mQ22020 =Q32020 mQ42020 mQ12021
West
Yorkshire

*Source: FAME 2021. Analysis based on company registration address, location of activity may differ in some cases Ao



Business

administration and personal

services show higher levels of liquidations

Analysis of business liquidations / dissolutions by sector in West Yorkshire shows the sectoral profile of
business failures reflects the make up of the economy quite closely in Q1 2021. However, there has been an
overrepresentation of business failures in business administration & support, information & communications,
and other services (which includes hairdressers and other personal services). There have been
comparatively few liquidations in wholesale & retail, professional services and health and care, relative to
their overall share of business stock though wholesale and retail had the highest number in absolute terms.

20%
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%

8%

8%

T4

Business liquidations / dissolutions by sector

Al .

m Q12021 e Share of total business base

mQ12020 =mQ22020 =Q32020 m=Q42020

*Source: FAME 2021. Analysis based on company registration address, location of activity may differ in some cases

West
Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



Little change in business conditions as
easing of restrictions approached

There has been relatively little change in headline measures of business conditions in the latest ONS
Business Insights and Conditions Survey (BICS) to March 28™. Compared to a fortnight earlier, there was
very little change in the proportion of businesses currently trading (73%), or the proportion of businesses with
less than three months cash in reserve (30.7%). The proportion of workers currently furloughed was also
largely unchanged at 18.6%, though there was a slight increase in people in their usual work place. This was
at 46.8% in the fortnight to 28" March, up from 45.7% a fortnight earlier and 43% in mid-February.

Taken together, this suggests the economy was largely static as many businesses awaited the further easing
of restrictions in March and April.

Business trading arrangements, June 2020 to March 2021
N
o 100

DD D DD
I\

LG L A R U
A I S
7\ SRS ‘bf( N ‘bﬁi\

) S:S“ 5\)\1 >\§' Y\)Q» 3 \)Q' }?‘\)Q &Gq ’%?;Q, pé: O(}{ 3\6\ %OQ QQGQ OQJO Y

NF RS S QTR PP NN RN R West
ey currently trading % with cash reserves of 3 months or less H
=, of workforce on furlough leave % working at their normal place of work yoglo(msbhleze

Authority



Activity Increasing in some urban centres as more
soclal mixing returns

Some urban centres in West Yorkshire saw substantial increases in activity in the week to April 8™, according
to Geolytix's Retail Recovery Index. However, some areas saw fewer movements, suggesting a mixed
pattern after the rule of six returned but prior to outdoor hospitality and non-essential retail reopening. Leeds,
Bradford and Huddersfield saw increases, with Huddersfield seeing the most substantial change, to 57% of
its pre-pandemic baseline compared to 44% a week earlier. Despite these increases, activity remains
between 35 and 50% lower than it was at the end of October, prior to the introduction of November’s
lockdown.

Smaller centres also show a mixed pattern, though Dewsbury, Keighley and Pontefract all saw sharp
ing(gases, with the former two seeing activity levels similar to late October.
\l

open

Retail recovery index - main urban centres Retail recovery index - smaller urban centres
Non- Local Local Non- Local Local
Lockdown  Relurn to essential ~ restrictions in - restrictions 2nd 3rd Schools Lockdown  Return to essential  restrictions in TGSTCUO"S 2nd 3rd Schools
. work _retail open parts of WY in Leeds lockdown lockdown reopen 14 ‘ work _retail opeR  parts of WY n, eeds lockdown |O°K‘?0W” reopen
1 ! i ] 1 Lockdown | : : ! : ; : ' Cowry ' U Rl
i i © Rdle ! i ! P ! i i yle
I ‘ e end, WY ) | P ; | Tier 2 : ; | ofer2
P ‘ powy Tier 3 : ‘ 12— I Pubs, bars & [ Lockgdown | I house
|Pubg, bars & '\ Tier2 J i | house | | i i [ i i /
! restaurants 3 R | ‘ holds | { festpurants [ pooendiwy i holds
: ; | : 10 ! open - : Tier 3 : |
0.8 \

ﬁ

Retail recovery index (pre-lockdown = 1)
Retail recovery index (pre-lockdown = 1)

L T~ e

‘ 3

é | S 3 1 N A= v

\ : Y Y, 1 r; # : 7,

3 d N : 04 — V\ - i b

5 7 b ? : : 02 —+ ¥¥ . - ;

i R R ; ? 0.0 R — . i

' ’ ‘_‘__' 'u‘u' ’ ' ' EEE_E_)\D\CCSEEU)UTD.Q.‘G*G >OUUCC-Q-DEBE_
E5 5 558 S5333995585833888558885% Ss4<2233332323288Q002200033828=s=¢4
ST 13257322829439009Qzz0q0q 3w =34 dd 2ol I s 8L238dLdd AU ddr e TR LD LB R
Ngg&’r'.‘lgﬁo‘-mmr-ovgﬁmmmr-‘-gﬁ‘—m‘—mg - a0 N5 50 - - o - O O - ®mT &8 -a - N ©
A [=3] - N ™ O - O v m - o~ N _mﬁighley _EthSb‘gry Eog’g‘gﬁagﬁ.d

Leeds e Huddersfield emm Bradford Wak efield] emmm— Halifax National Natonal eiherby ebden Bridge
Source: Geolytix Retail Recovery Index, 2021 Source: Geolytix Retail Recovery Index, 2021 We st
Yorkshire

. ; ; Combined
Source: Geolytix Retail Recovery Index Authority



Growth Service business feedback —i1ssues

related to EU EXit persist

Feedback from businesses on EU Exit impacts was limited over Easter, but continues to highlight supply
issues with companies facing challenges maintaining stock levels when sourcing form the EU. Combined with
the ongoing importing & exporting issues some companies are seeing delays of up to 4 weeks for products to
be delivered, either due to customs delays or being unhappy or unsure of the paperwork needed to export.

% reporting export challenges, Jan-March 2021

Additional paperw ork

Change in transportation costs

B Customs duties or levies
Reduced demand for products and services
Disruption at UK borders

Destination countries changing border restrictions
Lack of hauliers / logistics equipment®

Work permit, visa restrictions and qualifications

Closure of infrastructure used to export

Rl

Did not expenence any challenges with exporting

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%
m24-Jan m7th March 21st March

Source: ONS Business Insights & Conditions Survey

While other companies are currently
reviewing internal practices or trying to
invest in new machinery to help improve
their business ahead of the planned
reopening of the economy, at this stage in
the pandemic many businesses have
manged to mitigate the worst of the
COVID-19 impacts, successfully applying
safe working conditions. However, some
of the restrictions are not so easily
overcome for many businesses - in some
context working from home has reduced
the ability to train new staff and the
limitation on overseas travel has
impacted business that rely on overseas
travel.

West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority

6¢

Transport
Insights




National travel use shows a mixed picture
over the Easter period

Data for Great Britain shows that travel usage fluctuated over the Easter period, with a decrease in public
transport use. More data is needed to determine if the marked increase in the most recent days is a long term
trend. Similar trends occur locally.

DfT transport use during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

o English English English  “Stay at
Nationwide I L I schools  Home"
lockdown starts starts ends starts reopen ends

120%

100%

=

0€

Percentage use relative to an equivalent day
[+
o

IS
=]

20%

W AAA

0%

,,9 wq{w » '9@/ fﬁwﬁq’@@'@@@@@r&@@m ’L"/Q'LWQ‘LQILQW(L &> f»“ '19 w m 'ﬁ@,mw“wwwm wwmmw@w&gm@wmmww/ﬁw&m@m&m 5»(;19 > @ m‘ @
oD o o o P ¥ oV ¥ ¥ ¥ @ opluetontc %%Q}fb\\%\\Q\Q\Q\Q\\\'\\’\\\\'\\’L’L’LW \\\wawwsﬁﬁ \
IS (9\0 ,ﬂe S & @‘Q@" %@\@,ﬁ\o SRS \h\é“ vﬁ@‘&@@@ S oSS Q @%Q AN @@Q ,\@&\ R SO S S AN <\\° NSRS %\Q \0“\@“ West

wm All motor vehicles — emmmBus (excl. London) National Rail yOrksh I re

. . . . . Combined
Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic Authorityl



https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic

Local bus and rail show variations over the
Easter period

RAIL
(Leeds
Station
Footfall)

w
=

BUS
(MCard and
ENCTS)

m % Rail weekday change compared to baseline m % Bus weekday change compared to baseline
% Rail weekend change compared to baseline % Bus weekend change compared to baseline
. . English Lockdown English
Nationwide lockdown ends, WY  lockdown

lockdown starts starts in tier 3 starts

100%

% of baseline

"Stay at
Returnto Home"

school ends

90%

80% . : ; . .

70%

60%

50% 34%

40% : :

30% 521&

lliIIIIIIIIIIINII“ IIII L II|
6%

oo LIIIIIII..IIIIII III lill““l“ll

100% _ _
90% Over recent weeks, gradual increases continued up to the Easter bank holidays and school holidays. Bus
80% remains at a greater level of recovery compared to rail although the gap may have closed in recent days
4] i i H :
c 70% H : : i
T 60% 53% : ;
© P
a 0% . % .
w— 40% : :
2 30% 5
. o
2 0 : 21 Yo
20% 11%
o | [T
0%
L L o e x> >xCCCCCSS5SSDODODODacacyEERSE = > 0000 CcCCcCCcCCcCOo000= = =
T 0T o200 g om® =223 CCT8C22323300 08 S3Z8&8ag
S=529<SS222233333 0327332233388 90002222200aa 33338882 =5522<<
BR8N Ir2R58R RSN r S5 gRET2RIBERRBINAST 2R3 LS8 LHREE
Date

Baseline period is Monday 2nd - Friday 6th March 2020 (weekdays) and 29th Feb -1st March and 6th-7th March (weekends)

Source: Leeds Rail Station Footfall - Network Rail (top) and MCard and English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS)

West
Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



Bus use for all cohorts has been steadily
iIncreasing since lockdown

Bus use by all cohorts has steadily been increasing. In the week commencing 29" March some schools
were closed for Easter and some remained open while outdoor social restrictions were relaxed and use by
senior and disabled cohorts continued to grow. Provisional data for Easter week shows a reduction across
all cohorts as expected. This is similar to October half-term but with lower totals, perhaps as non-essential
retail and hospitality was open during October half term.

Thousand Weekday Average Passenger Volumes
passengers per 80%

weekday before =o=—Under 19

COVID 70%
= —&-Under 26 / Student
Adult S
221,000 E 60% et Adlult
der 19 2 ==0-=Disabled & Companion
101,000 o 50% .
’ = Senior
. 0
Senior =
0,
74,000 540/0
2
Under 26/ = 30%
Student %
34,000 m
.520%
Disabled & L
Companion 10%
29,000 .
Many academic
: % tickets-expired
|\/|ISC€||aI’180LIS 00 hhh >\>~>~>\CCCCC____pCDUJU)U)Q.Q_Q_Q_Q_*"“"“">>>>>UUOUCCCCQQQQ ¥¥¥¥¥¥
I o S5 3 3 3 O O O O C © © © ©
9,000 S2ITT25225333333°5°53333383830000222228888 88882 88055535259
T 8232ggzﬁﬁgggggig‘gﬁga":ﬁs'53&'%g;'228‘88&’853H%g;:gsgﬁﬁsgﬁﬁﬂg
ata rrom kFIrs c ccco OO0 0OO0OCCcCCcCCcCwLwcCccc ccccccoccco ccccccccc
g 69 >0 0 00000 S 00690 S 000666 6060606G0G6G6 >
Arriva, Yorkshire SSF332828P355535522223323P23383555333s33s8F355538323838282323F
Tiger and Transdev Week Commencing W t

Baseline period is w/c Mon 02 Mar. Source: Bus operators electronic ticket machine data, passenger boarding locations in West Yorkshire. y k ho
First, Arriva, Yorkshire Tiger and Transdev account for over 90% of bus services in West Yorkshire. Graph shows First and Transdev data. o[‘,on?bin!e';e
Data is for weekdays excluding bank holidays, with ticket types assigned to broad cohorts. Authority



Weekly tickets have seen the largest
Increase In use which mirrors September

The total level of fare paying passengers has increased across all levels of ticket commitment as was
expected with the return to school in the latest week’s data. Schools re-opened with less than a month of
term left which might explain why shorter ticket commitments were favoured compared with November.
Some schools were closed for Easter holidays and some remained open in the week commencing 29th
March.

o0 Bus journeys by ticket choice, Monday to Friday

m Single m Day or Return m Week m 4 Weeks or more

highest
total ticket
use since

GE) baseline half tier 3
© schools November schools
g reopen lockdown reopen
m
N—
o
X
o ) Christ
non-essential -mas AShow
retail reopens
, 4
8 10
7
9
7 8°% - - S
0 L LS 6 8 s
ok s > CC C C S S SsSSO0O0000Q000o0 BB R > > > > 2> 000 0CcCccc 0000 sss S S
T © 8 8 QS Q9 Qg o @ 5S35 353 O 0 O O T © © © ©
=SS>3<<<<2223233333222°333338808500002222288885833588288=5552
O M O N~ N N O © <
SR8 8URR3D2Kr38BARC-ITIggNIEETIR8938y390853R3038833849Y8
ccccE S EEE cccecS S CECCSCO0000CCECCCCccc SEESESEEccccccccc S S S S cceccccocccecc
coooLeeLee 292902 S 00000000 LLLL2c00c50006000L 0902000000000
SS55=22322222835355335352=2223322SS2SS222232sSs=2sSsS=2s3333=>==::=>=°:>
Week Commencing
(Data from First, Arriva, Yorkshire Tiger and Transdev. Baseline period is w/c/ Mon 02 Mar) West
L]
Baseline period is w/c Mon 02 Mar. Source: Bus operators electronic ticket machine data, passenger boarding locations in West Yorkshire. yorkShlre

; Combined
Graph shows First and Transdev. Authority




COVID restrictions have had more impact
on bus patronage than seasonal variation

These charts reveal seasonal variation in bus patronage recorded from smartcard use in Nero. Use by
seniors increased in February 2021 whereas it decreased in previous years, and in March it increased by
over 65% whereas in the previous two normal years it increased by around 10%. Under 19s has a clear
seasonal pattern, with reduced use in school holidays. The effect of combined school closures and other
COVID restrictions was greater than the effect of school holidays.

s 2017/2018 e 2018/2019 e 2019/2020

6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000

2,0@00

1,000,000

Passengers

0

s 2017/2018 e 2018/2019 e 2019/2020

900,000
800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000

0

Passengers

Source: WYCA Nero reports. Some variation between years occurs as months do not have an equal balance of weekdays, Saturdays and

All Cohorts

2020/2021

W

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

Adult

2020/2021

W

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

Passengers

Passengers

e 2017/2018 e 2018/2019 e 2019/2020

3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000

500,000

0

s 2017/2018 e 2018/2019 e 2019/2020

1,200,000
1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000
200,000

0

Senior

2020/2021

m

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

Disabled

2020/2021

W

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

Sundays each year, and because school and statutory holiday dates can vary .

Passengers

Passengers

Under 19

s 2017/2018  cme 2018/2019 s 2019/2020 2020/2021
1,200,000
1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

0
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Month

19-25/ Student

s 2017/2018  ce 2018/2019 e 2019/2020

4

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

2020/2021
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0

West

Yorkshire

Combined
Authority



Leeds City Footfall increases as travel restrictions
ease

There has seen a slight increase in Leeds City Centre footfall, with total footfall in the first two weeks of April
rising to 43% of the total recorded on the equivalent dates in 2019, up from 38% of the 2019 total in March.
This is in response to the stay at home rule lifting on 29t March and social contact limits rising to allow
meeting five other people.

The largest increase in footfall is seen at Dortmund Square, an area with outdoor seating, suggesting that it
has been used as a congregating area as people begin to mix more.

Change in Leeds City Centre Total Footfall 2019 to 2020/ 2021
80%

71%

Ge

70%
63%

60% 57%
57%
’ 55% 55% 56%

50%

46%
44%
41% 42% 3%
40%
40% 38%
30%
30% 28% 28%
20%| 20%%)
20%
10% 7%
g 7% 7% 6%
0% I
0%

Albion Street South  Lower Briggate at  Upper Briggate at Commercial Street at Dortmund Square Headrow at The Core Total Footfall
Trinity McDonalds Sharps West

Footfall as Percentage of 2019 Total

[ ]
W April 2020 November 2020 W December 2020 M February 2021 M March2021  mTo April 11th 2021 Yorkshire

Source: Leeds City Council Auﬁ‘%r:;gilned



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

Reportto:  Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP Board)

Date: 28 April 2021
Subject: COVID-19
Director: Brian Archer, Director of Economic Services

Author(s): lan Smyth, Head of Economic Policy

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Purpose of this report

To provide the LEP Board with an update on developments around the
COVID-19 crisis, including the delivery of products and services in response.

Information

Since the last LEP Board meeting in February 2021, the local authority areas
of West Yorkshire have moved into the second step of the UK Government’s
roadmap out of lockdown, with restrictions due to be in place until at least 21
June. Regulations published by the Government in March provide for the
possibility that some areas of England could find themselves in different steps,
depending on the circumstances regarding virus prevalence.

Against this uncertain backdrop, the LEP, and the five local authorities of West
Yorkshire, continue to support residents and businesses in West Yorkshire,
and the following sections outline some of the support available and the
progress made, before turning to issues of economic recovery and some
further issues for the roadmap out of lockdown.

Business Support and Engagement

Government support to individuals and businesses has been made available
through each stage of the pandemic, and this section outlines the progress
made on delivering that support since the last LEP Board meeting. The
support available brings together both nationally and locally funded projects,
ensuring comprehensive support for businesses.

At a Leeds City Region level, delivery continues on a number of schemes, with
the table below detailing the progress.

37



No. of Businesses

Project Funding Supported Delivery Partners

Local Authority Grants £200m 70,000 payments Local Authorities

(Nov 20 onwards — end actual

linked to ongoing

restrictions)

Additional Restrictions Grant | £20m actual 6,000 payments Local Authorities

COVID-19 Recovery Grants £1m actual 1114 actual Umi Commercial

(ERDF & LGF) £2.8m

committed

Digital Resilience Vouchers £1.06m 400 actual Leeds City Council

(up to £5,000) Project complete

Peer Learning Project £90,000 60 actual University of Leeds
Business School

Small Business Membership £300,000 1350 actual W&NY Chamber, Mid-

Scheme — allowing access to Yorkshire Chamber,

legal, HR, financial and FSB

wellbeing support

Cyber Security Support £100,000 160 actual North East Business

Scheme Resilience Centre

Business Resilience £15,000 180 actual Biskit

Webinars

2.5 Businesses across the City Region are also being impacted by the need to
adjust to the new requirements brought about by the end of the transition
period of the UK’s exit from the European Union at the beginning of the year.
The LEP and Combined Authority has put in place a wide range of support
for businesses, all of which was in place to 31 March 2021, the progress of
which is summarised in the table below. A number of the schemes will
continue to deliver for the second quarter of 2021.

Project Number of Timeline |Delivery
Businesses Supported Partner(s)

EU Transition support 278 (delivery 31/07/21 |Enterprise

service (regional service across |began 11/01/21, Growth Solutions

Yorkshire and Humber, extended to end of July (EGS), &

commissioned by the CA/LEP) 21) other Y&H LEPs

38




Telemarketing outreach service

(Leeds City Region, Y& NY)

324 referrals
1322 survey completions

(delivery began
11/01/21)

31/03/21

Blueberry Ltd

EU Exit legal advice & support

(Leeds City Region, Y&NY)

8

(delivery began
22/01/21, extended to
end of April 21)

30/04/21

Squire Patton
Boggs

Series of EU Transition webinars
(Yorkshire and Humber)

119 (delivery
began 18/01/21)

31/03/21

Greenborough
Management Ltd

Series of webinars to
help businesses internationalise
their marketing activity

(Yorkshire and Humber)

211

Additional 1:1 support —
22

(delivery began

31/03/21

UMi Commercial

support and advice through the
EU Transition

(Wakefield, Calderdale &
Kirklees)

began 22/01/21)

23/02/21)
Trade related documentation 224 (delivery 31/03/21 |Chamber
support and advice through the |began 18/01/21) International
EU Transition
(Leeds & Bradford, plus Y&NY)
Trade related documentation 129 (delivery 31/03/21 |Mid Yorkshire

Chamber
of Commerce

Employment and Skills Support

2.6

The Combined Authority and LEP continues to support individuals to better

equip them in the labour market as part of our economic recovery activity,
including through the £13.5m strategic employment and skills package agreed
by the Combined Authority on 27 November 2020. Since the last LEP Board
meeting the following progress has been made:

e Employment Hub: There has been ongoing discussion and planning with
each individual local authority about how they could effectively utilise the
extension of the Employment Hub provision which has caused some start
delays (although the delivery of the repurposed offer continues). Funding
Agreements are currently being finalised with each Local Authority.

e ReBoot: Along with the funding allocated by the Combined Authority to
extend ReBoot, there is also regional bootcamp funding to support training
offers to individuals. A procurement process will identify lead providers
against key themes which will allow us flexibility to procure responsive
provision. The procurement went live at the end of March.

e Marketing of the offer is being procured to create a high impact/focused
campaign driving traffic/enquiries to the FutureGoals portal.

Economic Recovery Plan Development and Implementation

39




2.7  Asreported previously, the longer-term planning for economic recovery for
West Yorkshire is being overseen by a West Yorkshire Economic Recovery
Board?, which is a working group of the Combined Authority and brings
together the five West Yorkshire Leaders and LEP Chair with partners from
the private sector, trade unions, business representative organisations, public
bodies and the third sector, to develop robust plans for the region’s recovery
and to help build an inclusive and sustainable economy for the future.

2.8 At the last meeting of the Combined Authority a refreshed version of the
Economic Recovery Plan was endorsed, alongside a fifth distinct proposition
on Culture and Creative Industries (see background documents). A summary
version, similar to one produced in September, will also be produced. All these
documents will remain live and be updated as required. The Combined
Authority and LEP will continue to work with the Economic Recovery Board
and local authorities to refine as necessary, and to ensure ongoing
complementarity to local recovery plans.

2.9 Key updates to the plan for LEP Board to note include:

e Culture and Creative Industries proposition— recognising the
important contribution they make to our places, quality of life and the
economy. Key features:

o Our offer builds on the assets and scale of the creative & cultural
sectors in West Yorkshire (employing 47,000 people across 7,000
businesses, which increased by 30% between 2015 and 2018)

o Links to local commitment — the draft West Yorkshire cultural
framework sets a clear ambition for culture in the region, and
through devolved funding the Combined Authority has already
committed to a number of local projects through a £5m fund.

o Investment proposals covering:

= Maximising Creative Business Potential: proposes a
dedicated network of culture growth managers rooted in local
areas, and a mentoring programme, with improved links to
mainstream business support including access to finance.

= Creative Skills: proposes a dedicated package focussed on re-
imagining opportunities for young people, and ensuring creative
industries have the skills to grow. Builds on the wider skills and
training support within the Recovery Plan.

= Visitor and Citizen Experience: investing to catalyse large
scale festivals and cultural interventions in empty spaces,
including through extending the successful Producers Hub and
stimulating community led culture groups.

e An update of the underpinning evidence to reflect on progress against
the original recovery scenarios in relation to business performance,
employment and household income.

! Further details on the full membership and terms of reference: https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/erb

40


https://www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk/erb

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

3.1

e Priority 1: Good Jobs and Resilient Businesses. More focus on the
need to support job creation, including through inward investment,
following announcements of significant new programmes to work with
those out of employment

e Priority 2: Skills and Training for People. Updated to prepare for the
potential implications of the end of the furlough scheme, and reflecting on
a number of additional new government skills and employment
interventions, and particularly the need to support young people

e Priority 3: Accelerating Infrastructure and Capital Projects. Updated
to incorporate further shovel ready flood infrastructure projects, which
can help to increase community resilience and stimulate the economy.

Alongside the recovery plan update, work continues on implementing
elements of the recovery plan within existing local and regional resources.
With no specific funding for regional recovery plans included in the March
Budget, the Combined Authority is continuing to prioritise actions that will have
the biggest impact on key issues identified in the Plan.

At their last meeting, the Combined Authority gave its support in principle to
three programmes discussed in detail at the last meeting of the LEP Board in
February: on entrepreneurship, a net zero carbon pipeline and on health
innovation. These are currently being developed in detail, in line with the
Combined Authority approval and the Assurance Framework, to ultimately be
formally approved at a future meeting of the Investment Committee. The LEP
Board and relevant panels will continue to be engaged in this development.

Issues related to the roadmap out of lockdown

On 5 April 2021, the Prime Minister announced that the Government’s “four
tests” for further easing restrictions had been met, allowed England to move to
Step 2 of the Government’s roadmap on Monday 12 April. This means that
outdoor hospitality can now reopen, alongside parts of the indoor economy
(including non-essential retail, personal care premises and indoor leisure
facilities) and some other outdoor settings (including zoos and theme parks).

Restrictions around size of gatherings, including the rule of six or two

household limit, remain. The Government is also considering and piloting
options for longer term restrictions and requirements to allow international
travel, as well as larger events and gatherings with less social distancing.

The LEP will continue to monitor the impact of these changes on businesses
in Leeds City Region, and what support is required building from the Economic
Recovery Plan.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications
Clean Growth will continue to be supported through the products delivered in

response to COVID-19 and is at the heart of the Economic Recovery Plan as
an overarching goal.

41



3.2

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

Businesses will continue to be supported to apply innovation and digital
technologies to adapt their products and services to meet current and future
demand and reduce their carbon emissions.

Inclusive Growth Implications

Inclusive Growth is embedded as an overarching goal in the Economic
Recovery Plan.

As part of the West Yorkshire Inclusive Growth framework, any businesses
that receive grants from the above products would be required to contribute to
Inclusive Growth actions and outcomes via their funding agreements.

Equality and Diversity Implications

There are no equality and diversity implications directly arising from this
report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. However,
following the March 2021 Budget where no further funding was allocated for
local COVID-19 recovery plans, further delivery implementation of the West
Yorkshire Economic Recovery Plan will require new sources of funding.
Legal Implications

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

Staffing Implications

None arising directly from this report.

External Consultees

No specific or official external consultations have been undertaken in relation
to this report. However, it has been informed by ongoing dialogue and
consultation with LEP Panels and wide range of partners, including local
authorities, the West Yorkshire Economic Recovery Board, universities and
colleges, business representative and membership bodies, and direct with
some individual businesses.

Recommendations

That the LEP Board notes the updates in relation to COVID-19.

42



11. Background Documents

11.1 West Yorkshire Economic Recovery Plan (refreshed March 2021):
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18944/ltem%205%20-
%20Appendix%201.pdf

11.2 West Yorkshire Recovery Proposition — Culture and Creative Industries:
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18945/ltem%205%20-
%20Appendix%202.pdf

12. Appendices

12.1 There are no appendices to this report.

43


https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18944/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18944/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18945/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%202.pdf
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s18945/Item%205%20-%20Appendix%202.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



[P

Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

Agenda Item 7

1.1

2.1

2.2

Report to: Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP Board)
Date: 28 April 2021
Subject: LEP Capital Programme (Investment Committee)
Director: Melanie Corcoran, Director of Delivery
Author: Lynn Cooper, Portfolio Lead, Portfolio Management Office
1 Purpose of this report

To inform the LEP Board of the progress made implementing the LEP capital

programme for 2020/21. The report provides:

. an update on capital programme expenditure in 2020/21 (quarter 3
actuals and quarter 4 forecast), including an update on the forecast

spend of each of the LEP programmes. It also seeks endorsement of the

Growth Deal Data Capture return for quarter 3 2020/21; and

. a brief summary of the initial outcome of the Annual Performance Review

with the Cities and Local Growth Unit which now includes both the
Growth Deal and the Getting Building Fund.

Information

Capital Programme 2020/21

At its meeting on 4 February 2021 the Combined Authority approved the
revised capital forecast for 2020/21 as well as the indicative capital
programme for 2021/22 to 2023/24, this includes the LEP programmes

detailed in Table 1.

Table 1
Combined

Authority Budget

Forecast February | Actual Quarter 3
Capital Programme Expenditure 2021 2020/21 % Year End Forecast %
Growth Deal - Economic Development £47,439,952 £22,904,582 48.3% £48,108,655| 101.4%
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund £80,273,172 £38,308,165 47.7% £79,081,531 98.5%
Broadband £2,274,633 £85,135 3.7% £1,323,484 58.2%
Getting Building Fund £26,300,000 £47,149 0.2% £8,372,427 31.8%
Total Capital Spend £156,287,757 £61,345,032 39.3% £136,886,097 87.6%

In general all funding programmes continue to progress well and expenditure
is on track. The following provides an update on each of the individual

programmes:

45




Growth Deal Economic Development — while this programme officially
ended on 31 March 2021 the Cities and Local Growth Unit has stated
that the Combined Authority can use its freedoms and flexibilities to
maximise spend where schemes are in contract and will spend into April
2021. This element of the Growth Deal remains over-programmed.

As reported to the February meeting while the aim of overprogramming is
not to overspend, the message to all projects has been to maximise
spend against approved funding wherever possible. The reason for this
is that overspend can be used to offset against other programmes where
they are unlikely to achieve target spend in 2020/21. It is also important
that momentum on the delivery of key priorities is maintained and that we
seek alternative funding opportunities for shovel ready projects. Table 2
below sets out the current forecast overprogramming, the risk of
underspend on individual projects has been mitigated by the ability to
spend against contractual commitments if required. The Growth Deal
Economic Development dashboard for quarter 3 is attached at Appendix
1.

Table 2

Economic Development Allocation £235,450,000
Spend to end of 2019/20 £194,650,211
Balance to be spent in 2020/21 £40,799,789
Quarter 1 - 3 2020/21 spend £22,904,583
Current forecast quarter 4 £21,347,663
Forecast 2020/21 £44,252,246
Overprogramming at end of March 2021 £3,452,457
Spend into April 2021 £3,381,409
Total Economic Development spend at end of April 2021 £242,283,866
Overprogramming at end of April 2021 £6,833,866

Transport Fund — this element of the Growth Deal is expected to

underspend against the £280.90 million allocation (provided for the six
years up to 31 March 2021). However, given that the programme runs

over a longer timeframe and the Growth Deal funding within the
Transport Fund is fully contractually committed (total £306.70 million just
under £13 million over the allocation), underspend will be carried forward
to be spent in 2021/22.

Final quarter 4 claims for 2020/21 are being submitted and processed
and the accounts are due to be finalised by 31 May 2021. Forecast
spend for 2020/21 is still in line with the latest estimate although there
have been ups and downs across individual projects. The East Leeds
Orbital Route (ELOR) is currently on site and is the highest spending
project within the programme. There have been delays in the last couple
of months due to adverse weather conditions leading to underspend in
year of around £2 million. The submission of the full business case for

46



Elland Rail Station, which is due to commence on site next financial year,
has been delayed due to designs being revised to take into account new
safety regulations, leading to slippage of a forecast £1 million in 2020/21.
These underspends are offset by accelerated spend on other projects
within the programme in particular the Corridor Improvement
Programme. The Transport Fund dashboard for quarter 3 is attached at
Appendix 2.

Broadband — Expenditure on the Broadband programme mainly relates
to the completion of Contract 2 which is being delivered through
Openreach, and is due to end June 2021. All Building Digital UK (BDUK)
and European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) money had been
spent by end 2019/20, however, a final claim from Openreach is awaited,
which will be utilising the £2.55 million underspend (with accrued interest)
from Contract 1.

For Contract 3, there has been a recent variation agreement with
DEFRA, to reflect the delayed start, as well as a reduction in business
premises being passed, from 1,723 to 1,565, due to state aid eligibility
issues. Of these, Quickline (the supplier) remains on track to deliver 219
by quarter 4 2020/21. However, the no claims have yet been processed
as sign-off is awaited from BDUK on Quickline’s cross-border policy.

A meeting was held with members of the board on 23 March 2021 to
discuss the options around use of the £3.52 million Gainshare from
Contract 1. For the time being this money will be retained until future
BDUK fibre initiatives are clarified.

Getting Building Fund — The total funding received for this programme
in 2020/21 is £26.30 million and in accordance with Government
requirements the Combined Authority will achieve this spend through use
of its freedoms and flexibilities. This will involve transferring capital
spend from other programmes where underspend in 2020/21 will not be
detrimental and with full spend on the Getting Building Fund achieved by
31 March 2022. The current forecast spend for each of the Getting
Building Fund projects is detailed in Table 3 below. The majority of
projects continue to progress through the assurance process with recent
full funding approvals from West Yorkshire Combined Authority including:

o  Temple Green Park & Ride — £7.4 million

o Business Growth Programme — £7 million

o Bradford City Village — £3 million

o  Leeds Grey to Green - £1.32 million (Phase 1 of a total £8.6 million)

Brighouse A6025 Reconstruction and Enterprise Zones (Parry Lane) is
scheduled for consideration in April 2021.

47



2.3

24

25

Table 3

Project 2020/21 2021/22

Forecast Spend| Forecast Spend
Business Growth Programme £0 £7,000,000
Enterprise Zones Bradford Parry Lane and Wakefield Langthwaite £0 £9,070,000
Bradford One City Park £0 £7,500,000
Bradford 'City Village' Phase 1 £3,000,000 £0
Leeds Liverpool Canal £60,000 £440,000
Brighouse A6025 Reconstruction £0 £1,800,000
Beech Hill Phase 2 Group Repair & Regeneration Scheme £0 £1,200,000
Huddersfield George Hotel acquisition and remedial works £1,365,000 £0
Dewsbury Arcade £600,000 £0
Leeds City Centre 'Grey to Green' £605,940 £7,994,060
Holbeck Phase 2 Victorian Terrace Retrofit £204,000 £2,400,000
Temple Green Park and Ride Expansion £2,200,000 £5,200,000
Wakefield Warm Homes Fund £180,000 £481,000
Business Gigabit Voucher Scheme £0 £300,000
Knottingley Skills, Business and Services Hub £157,487 £842,513
Total £8,372,427 £44,227,573

Each quarter a return is made to the Cities and Local Growth Unit (CL0G)
through its data capture system which collates Growth Deal programme
information. CLoG has requested that this dashboard should be endorsed by
the LEP Board each quarter. The dashboard for the quarter 3 was submitted in
accordance with the deadline of 19 February 2021 it is attached at Appendix
3 for information and endorsement of the LEP Board. The deadline for the
quarter 4 return is 28 May 2021, this will be submitted for consideration to the
LEP Board on 9 June 2021.

Annual Performance Review

Growth Deal

The Growth Deal Annual Performance Review took place on 27 January 2021.
The indications from the meeting were positive with the expectations that the
Leeds City Region will meet all requirements.

The Growth Deal programme continues to perform well with expenditure for
guarter 3 exceeding the forecast provided to the Cities and Local Growth Unit
as part of the review undertaken on the programme in June 2020.

The programme is also performing well against the overall programme outputs
as follows:

Table 4

Target (includes [Achieved to date

Growth Deals 1, | as at Quarter 3 Forecast
Output 2and 3) 2020/21 2021-25 Total
New jobs 19,595 8,383 7,114 15,497
Jobs safeguarded (flood resilience programme) 11,100 24,583 700 25,283
Houses 2,300 1,009 2,251 3,260
Public / private investment (match funding) £1,031,000,000 £721,517,014| £377,453,695| £1,098,970,709

48




2.6

3.1

3.2

There have been concerns in relation to the achievement of housing outputs
and work has been undertaken to ensure that all homes completed are
captured. The following tables 5 and 6 provide a full breakdown of the actual
and forecast achievement of homes created and homes enabled (where
homes will be completed after the deadline for reporting outputs which is
March 2025). This is a positive impact with over 10,000 new homes to be
created or enabled through this programme.

Table 5 Homes Completed

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

The Combined Authority has taken action to ensure all decisions made include
Climate Emergency considerations. The Combined Authority:

. Has strengthened how clean growth and climate change impacts are
considered as part of all schemes that come through the Combined
Authority’s Assurance Framework.

o Requires LEP and the Combined Authority reports to include clean
growth / tackling the Climate Emergency implications, including
gualitative impact assessments.

To fully strengthen decision making across the whole of the Combined
Authority’s Assurance Framework a robust, quantifiable methodology and tool
for assessing all new schemes predicted carbon emissions/wider clean growth
impacts is being developed. Work is currently underway to refine the toolkit

49

Actuals 2020/21
Project reported to end Forecast as Actual to Future Years Total
2019/20 per Data end of Q3 Q4 Forecast | Forecast
Capture
Wakefield Eastern Relief Road 236 0 0 236
East Leeds Housing Growth - Red Hall 0 150 150
East Leeds, Brownfield Sites 149 89 141 230 520
York Central 0 283 283
Kirklees Housing sites 50 478 478
Bath Road, Leeds 0 160 160
Glasshoughton Southern Link Road 0 281 0 281
CIP - Phase 1 - Wakefield A650 Newton Bar 0 605 605
New Bolton Woods 52 50 6 87 145
Beech Hill, Halifax 0 105 105
Dewsbury Riverside 10 0 0 0
Bradford Heritage Buildings - Conditioning House 150 150 0 150
Wakefield South East Gateway - Kirkgate 0 60 60
Wakefield South East Gateway - Rutland Mill 0 0 0
Bradford Heritage Buildings - High Point 0 87 87
Total 437 349 572 6 2245 3260
Table 6 Homes Enabled
Project Homes Enabled

East Leeds Housing Growth - Red Hall 150

Glasshoughton Southern Link Road 919

CIP - Phase 1 - Wakefield A650 Newton Bar 805

Leeds ELOR and North Leeds Outer Ring Road 5000

York Northern Outer Ring Road 755

Total 7629




3.3

5.1

8.1

9.1

methodology by assessing a selection of existing capital schemes progressing
through assurance framework which are in scope of this assessment. The
outcome of this assessment, including potential mitigation and
recommendations for shortlisted schemes will inform the development of
toolkit and will be discussed with partners, and reported to the Combined
Authority in June 2021. The tool will be incorporated into the Assurance
Framework so that it can be used to assess future proposals as they progress
through the assurance process. This part of the commission will involve a
significant training element to ensure carbon assessment is properly
embedded in the assurance process.

Clean growth, including climate change, impact assessment / considerations
are all now included in all Capital Spending and Project Approvals reports
considered by the Investment Committee and the Combined Authority. This
ensures that the business cases now reflect the Leeds City Region Climate
Emergency priority and evidence that they will reduce carbon emissions (both
directly and indirectly).

Inclusive Growth Implications

This report does not directly impact on Inclusive Growth; this is assessed as
part of the appraisal of each project through the assurance framework and
reported to the Investment Committee in the Capital Spending and Project
Approvals report.

Equality and Diversity Implications
This report does not directly impact on Equality and Diversity this is assessed
as part of the appraisal of each project through the assurance framework and

reported to the Investment Committee in the Capital Spending and Project
Approvals report.

Financial implications

Financial implications are included within the body of the report.
Legal implications

There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.
Staffing implications

There are no staffing implications directly arising from this report.
External consultees

No external consultations have been undertaken.

50



10

101

11

11.1

12

Recommendations

That the LEP Board notes the progress of the LEP capital programme for
2020/21 and endorses the Data Capture return for quarter 3 attached at
Appendix 3.

Background Documents

None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Growth Deal Economic Development Dashboard Quarter 3
2020/21

Appendix 2 Transport Fund Dashboard Quarter 3 2020/21

Appendix 3 Growth Deal Data Capture Return Quarter 3 2020/21

51



This page is intentionally left blank



€g

Actual to date

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal Economic Development Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020) Target | | 45,180,410 22,904,583 2020121,
2020/2021
- I . Cumulative Actual
- . Original Indicative Full Funding . Agreed Annual Actual Spend Forecast Spend | Actual & Forecast .
S13P (el IPREEEE RETe Allocation Funding Approval Spezr‘:zg;z'i' | Forecast 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 Spend 202021 | RAG Rating | | Total to 2020/21
Priority 0 Growth Deal Programme Delivery Costs £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,858,627.48 £2,500,000.00 £1,713,801.83 £560,000.00 £2,273,801.83 Green £10,132,429.31
Priority O Total £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,858,627.48 £2,500,000.00 £1,713,801.83 £560,000.00 £2,273,801.83 £10,132,429.31
Priority 1 -
Growing Access to Capital Grants Programme £15,700,000.00 |£15,700,000.00 [£15,700,000.00 £12,918,579.13 £2,126,704.00 £1,011,947.84 £1,114,757.03 £2,126,704.87 Green/Amber | |£15,045,284.00
Business Business Expansion Fund £0.00 £13,450,000.00 |£13,450,000.00 £2,660,831.55 £3,397,861.00 £1,073,753.95 £3,715,414.50 £4,789,168.45 £7,450,000.00
Business Growth Programme £27,000,000.00 |£37,000,000.00 [£37,000,000.00 £25,155,874.63 £5,844,125.00 £3,568,434.26 £3,275,691.11 £6,844,125.37 Green/Amber_| |£32,000,000.00
Huddersfield Incubation and Innovation Programme £2,922,000.00 £2,922,000.00 £2,922,000.00 £2,922,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £2,922,000.00
Institute for High Speed Rail and System Integration £0.00 £13,047,000.00 [£9,252,000.00 £3,243,235.11 £0.00 -£3,243,235.11 £0.00 -£3,243,235.11 Amber £0.00
Leeds University Innovation Centre £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber_| |£3,000,000.00
Priority 1 - Growing Business Total £48,622,000.00 |£85,119,000.00 [£81,324,000.00 £49,900,520.42 £11,368,690.00 £2,410,900.94 £8,105,862.64 £10,516,763.58 £60,417,284.00
Priority 2 - Skilled | Bradford College £250,000.00 £250,000.00 £250,000.00 £249,999.76 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £249,999.76
People and Better|Calderdale College £4,977,000.00 £4,977,000.00 £4,977,000.00 £4,977,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £4,977,000.00
Jobs Kirklees College - Dewsbury Learning Quarter £11,120,000.00 [£11,121,218.00 [£11,971,218.00 £10,453,945.37 £667,273.00 £0.00 £667,272.63 £667,272.63 Amber £11,121,218.00
Kirklees College - Process Manufacturing Centre £3,100,000.00 £3,100,996.00 £3,100,996.00 £3,100,996.79 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £3,100,996.79
Leeds City College - Printworks £9,000,000.00 £8,998,358.00 £8,998,358.00 £8,998,358.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £8,998,358.00
Leeds City College - Quarry Hill £33,400,000.00 [£39,900,000.00 [£39,900,000.00 £39,900,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber_| |£39,900,000.00
Leeds College of Building £11,900,000.00 |£13,350,000.00 [£13,350,000.00 £13,350,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber | |£13,350,000.00
Selby College £690,000.00 £693,748.00 £693,748.00 £693,748.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £693,748.00
Shipley College - Mill £120,000.00 £119,000.00 £119,000.00 £119,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £119,000.00
Shipley College - Salt Building £300,000.00 £300,000.00 £300,000.00 £300,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £300,000.00
Wakefield College £3,300,000.00 £3,327,133.00 £3,327,133.00 £3,327,133.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £3,327,133.00
Priority 2 - Skilled People and Better Jobs Total £78,157,000.00 |£86,137,453.00 |£86,987,453.00 £85,470,180.92 £667,273.00 £0.00 £667,272.63 £667,272.63 £86,137,453.55
Priority 3 - Clean Energy Accelerator £1,200,000.00 £820,000.00 £820,000.00 £413,605.70 £406,395.00 £15,163.85 £101,817.09 £116,980.94 Amber £530,586.64
Energy a!1d Leeds District Heat Network £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £4,000,000.00
Economic Resource Efficiency Fund £600,000.00 £720,000.00 £720,000.00 £720,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £720,000.00
Resilience Resource Efficiency Fund 2 £560,000.00 £616,552.00 £616,552.00 £0.00 £616,552.00 £245,077.31 £275,814.01 £520,891.32 £520,891.00
Tackling Fuel Poverty £0.00 £5,669,840.42 £5,669,840.42 £5,669,840.42 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £5,669,840.42
Priority 3 - Clean Energy and Economic Resilience Total £6,360,000.00 £11,826,392.42 |£11,826,392.42 £10,803,446.12 £1,022,947.00 £260,241.16 £377,631.10 £637,872.26 £11,441,318.06
Priority 4a - Barnsley Town Centre £1,760,000.00 £1,757,000.00 £1,757,000.00 £1,757,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £1,757,000.00
Housing and  |Bradford - One City Park £5,200,000.00 £5,200,000.00 £5,200,000.00 £400,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £400,000.00
Regeneration |Bradford Heritage Buildings - Conditioning House £0.00 £1,500,000.00 £1,500,000.00 £400,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £0.00 £1,100,000.00 Green/Amber | |£1,500,000.00
Bradford Heritage Buildings - High Point £0.00 £2,900,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,900,000.00 £2,900,000.00 £2,900,000.00
Bradford Odeon £330,000.00 £357,500.00 £357,500.00 £357,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £357,500.00
Dewsbury Riverside £0.00 £4,612,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £885,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00
East Leeds Housing Growth - Brownfield Sites £1,100,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £1,100,000.00
East Leeds Housing Growth - Red Hall £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £4,000,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £4,000,000.00
Halifax - Beech Hill £1,000,000.00 £2,197,000.00 £2,197,000.00 £1,400,000.00 £797,000.00 £0.00 £797,000.00 £797,000.00 Amber £2,197,000.00
Halifax Town Centre (Northgate House) £1,300,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £3,000,000.00
Kirklees Housing Sites £1,000,000.00 £1,000,000.00 £1,000,000.00 £509,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £509,000.00
Leeds - Bath Road £580,000.00 £575,000.00 £575,000.00 £575,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £575,000.00
New Bolton Woods £3,600,000.00 £3,960,000.00 £3,960,000.00 £3,600,000.00 £360,000.00 £0.00 £360,000.00 £360,000.00 Green £3,960,000.00
Wakefield Civic Quarter £1,100,000.00 £1,100,000.00 £1,055,686.80 £1,055,686.80 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £1,055,686.80
Wakefield South East Gateway - Kirkgate £0.00 £1,600,000.00 £1,600,000.00 £0.00 £1,600,000.00 £1,600,000.00 £0.00 £1,600,000.00 Green/Amber_| |£1,600,000.00
Wakefield South East Gateway - Rutland Mill £0.00 £4,900,000.00 £4,900,000.00 £0.00 £4,900,000.00 £2,121,527.00 £2,778,473.00 £4,900,000.00 Amber £4,900,000.00
York Central £1,700,000.00 £2,550,000.00 £2,550,000.00 £2,550,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber | |£2,550,000.00
York Guildhall £2,350,000.00 £2,347,500.00 £2,347,500.00 £2,347,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £2,347,500.00
Priority 4a - Housing and Regeneration Total £25,020,000.00 |£44,656,000.00 |[£37,099,686.80 £23,051,686.80 £9,642,000.00 £4,821,527.00 £6,835,473.00 £11,657,000.00 £34,708,686.80
Priority 4c - Flood Alleviation - Brighouse and Clifton £1,800,000.00 £1,500,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,500,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00
Economic Flood Alleviation - Hebden Bridge £1,800,000.00 £1,900,000.00 £1,900,000.00 £0.00 £1,900,000.00 £1,221,543.00 £678,457.00 £1,900,000.00 Amber £1,900,000.00
Resilience Flood Alleviation - Leeds (FAS1) £3,786,981.00 £3,786,981.00 £3,786,981.00 £3,786,981.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £3,786,981.00
Programme Flood Alleviation - Leeds (FAS2) £3,900,000.00 £3,900,000.00 £3,900,000.00 £3,900,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £3,900,000.00
Flood Alleviation - Mytholmroyd £2,500,000.00 £4,500,000.00 £4,500,000.00 £2,500,000.00 £0.00 £2,000,000.00 £0.00 £2,000,000.00 Green £4,500,000.00
Flood Alleviation - Skipton £1,500,000.00 £1,500,000.00 £1,500,000.00 £1,500,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £1,500,000.00
Flood Alleviation - Wyke Beck £2,558,000.00 £2,558,000.00 £2,558,000.00 £2,557,796.75 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £2,557,796.75
Natural Flood Management - Colne and Calder £1,299,107.00 £1,299,107.00 £1,299,107.00 £630,837.52 £668,269.00 £648,110.20 £20,159.28 £668,269.48 Green £1,299,107.00
Natural Flood Management - Upper Aire £388,000.00 £388,000.00 £388,000.00 £176,671.39 £211,329.00 £126,273.82 £85,054.79 £211,328.61 Green/Amber_| |£388,000.00
Priority 4c - Economic Resilience Programme Total £19,532,088.00 |£21,332,088.00 [£19,832,088.00 £15,052,286.66 £4,279,598.00 £3,995,927.02 £783,671.07 £4,779,598.09 £19,831,884.75
Priority 4d - EZ - Bradford - Gain Lane £0.00 £9,877,037.00 £9,877,037.00 £1,442,658.37 £8,434,342.00 £3,532,342.00 £4,901,999.63 £8,434,341.63 Green £9,877,000.00
Enterprise Zone |EZ - Bradford - Parry Lane £8,081,000.00 £1,886,000.00 £1,886,000.00 £0.00 £540,000.00 £490,382.64 £1,325,617.36 £1,816,000.00 Green/Amber | |£1,816,000.00
Development |EZ - Bradford - Staithgate Lane £0.00 £85,230.00 £85,230.00 £71,600.00 £13,630.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber £71,600.00
EZ - Calderdale - Clifton Business Park £0.00 £3,356,000.00 £3,356,000.00 £328,417.90 £750,000.00 £955,611.71 £61,000.00 £1,016,611.71 £1,345,029.61
EZ - Leeds - Aire Valley £10,000,000.00 [£4,588,590.00 £4,588,590.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00

T Xlpuaddy

) Wa]| epuaby



14°]

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal Economic Development Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020)

Target | |

Actual to date

45,180,410 22,904,583 AL
2020/2021
- I . Cumulative Actual
- . Original Indicative Full Funding . Agreed Annual Actual Spend Forecast Spend | Actual & Forecast .
=P AT IPREEEE RETe Allocation Funding Approval Spezr’;zglrz'ir | Forecast 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 Spend 202021 | RAG Rating | | Total to 2020/21
EZ - Programme £10,000,000.00 |£22,782,143.00 |£3,519,067.00 £670,785.87 £2,787,310.00 £2,005,901.63 £621,408.37 £2,627,310.00 Amber £3,298,095.87
EZ - Wakefield - Langthwaite Business Park Extension £0.00 £1,261,330.00 £1,261,330.00 £0.00 £500,000.00 £43,326.88 £456,673.12 £500,000.00 £500,000.00
EZ - Wakefield - South Kirkby Business Park £2,826,000.00 £2,674,620.00 £2,674,620.00 £0.00 £2,674,620.00 £2,674,620.00 £0.00 £2,674,620.00 Green £2,674,620.00
Priority 4d - Enterprise Zone Development Total £22,826,000.00 [£52,705,950.00 [£25,901,874.00 £2,513,462.14 £15,699,902.00 £9,702,184.86 £7,366,698.48 £17,068,883.34 £19,582,345.48
and To 00 088.00 ) 6,883.4 62,971,494 £194,650,210.54 4 80,410.00 904,582.8 4,696,608.9 47,601,19 £242,251,401.95
Economic Development Overprogramming £3,691,457.54 £0.00 £6,801,401.95 £6,801,401.95 £6,801,401.95




GG

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal West Yorkshire + Transport Fund Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020)

Target

| | 89,701,488

38,527,895

Actual to date

2020/21
2020/2021
" Cumulative Actual
- X . . I~ . Full Funding § Agreed Annual Actual Spend Forecast Spend | Actual & Forecast .
SEP Priority Project Name Original Allocation|Indicative Funding Approval Spe;odzglgir to Forecast 2020/21 202021 2020/21 Spend 2020/21 RAG Rating Total to 2020/21
Priority 4b - West [A6110 Leeds Outer Ring Road £17,800,000.00 £11,990,000.00 £596,000.00 £205,090.00 £280,000.00 £78,468.00 £45,000.00 £123,468.00 Amber £328,558.00
Yorkshire + A62 to Cooper Bridge Corridor Improvement Scheme £69,270,000.00 £69,300,000.00 £965,000.00 £963,325.02 £647,305.00 £1,674.98 £0.00 £1,674.98 £965,000.00
Transport Fund |A62 to Cooper Bridge Corridor Improvement Scheme (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
A629 (Phase 1A) - Jubilee Road to Free School Lane £8,160,000.00 £8,639,999.00 £8,639,999.00 £8,639,999.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber | |£8,639,999.00
AB29 (Phase 1A) - Jubilee Road to Free School Lane (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £35.66 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £35.66
A629 (Phase 1B) - Elland Wood Bottom to Jubilee Road £18,900,000.00 £27,830,000.00 £11,480,000.00 £2,492,174.47 £2,869,996.00 £1,277,336.19 £1,270,000.00 £2,547,336.19 Green/Amber_| [£5,039,510.66
A629 (Phase 2) - Halifax Bus Station £0.00 £405,000.00 £405,000.00 £309,879.05 £256,531.00 £95,120.95 £0.00 £95,120.95 Green £405,000.00
A629 (Phase 2) - Halifax Town Centre £40,930,000.00 £47,840,000.00 £5,844,000.00 £3,046,119.25 £789,271.00 £401,752.01 £1,289,000.00 £1,690,752.01 Green/Amber_| [£4,736,871.26
AB29 (Phase 2) - Halifax Town Centre (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £84,969.89 £0.00 -£84,969.89 £0.00 -£84,969.89 £0.00
A629 (Phase 4) - Ainley Top £30,000,000.00 £25,920,000.00 £7,085,000.00 £714,408.91 £580,000.00 £216,236.04 £275,000.00 £491,236.04 Green/Amber_ | [£1,205,644.95
A629 (Phase 4) - Ainley Top (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
A629 (Phase 5) - Ainley Top into Huddersfield £12,087,608.00 £12,090,000.00 £4,418,295.00 £1,860,196.84 £523,800.00 £393,672.91 £31,705.24 £425,378.15 Amber £2,285,574.99
AB29 (Phase 5) - Ainley Top into Huddersfield (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
A641 Bradford - Huddersfield Corridor £75,550,000.00 £75,540,000.00 £2,129,000.00 £642,121.59 £734,780.00 £140,194.49 £308,559.00 £448,753.49 Green/Amber | |£1,090,875.08
AB5 - Leeds Bradford International Airport Link Road £35,690,000.00 £75,000,000.00 £1,785,000.00 £1,688,983.00 £180,000.00 £56,742.00 £39,275.00 £96,017.00 Amber £1,785,000.00
A650 Hard Ings Road (Phase 1) - Hard Ings Road Only £10,250,000.00 £9,334,000.00 £9,334,000.00 £6,404,358.00 £1,374,602.00 £2,353,611.00 £0.00 £2,353,611.00 Green/Amber | |£8,757,969.00
AB50 Hard Ings Road (Phase 1) - Hard Ings Road Only (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
AB50 Tong Street £7,070,000.00 £20,000,000.00 £2,715,000.00 £274,005.00 £237,010.00 £41,846.00 £0.00 £41,846.00 Green/Amber | |£315,851.00
AB50 Tong Street (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£89,005.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£89,005.00
Aire Valley - Leeds Integrated Transport Package (Phase 1) - Aire Valley
Park and Ride £28,830,000.00 £8,640,000.00 £9,597,000.00 £8,635,208.00 £0.00 £0.00 £961,792.00 £961,792.00 Green £9,597,000.00
Aire Valley - Leeds Integrated Transport Package (Phase 1) - Aire Valley
Park and Ride (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £341,365.04 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £341,365.04
Bradford Forster Square Station Gateway £17,030,000.00 £17,320,000.00 £3,671,314.00 £457,363.70 £303,359.00 £36,000.00 £0.00 £36,000.00 Green £493,363.70
Bradford Forster Square Station G (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £27,377.39 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £27,377.39
Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 1) £10,880,000.00 £5,650,000.00 £293,000.00 £261,642.00 £158,492.00 £59,977.00 £86,405.00 £146,382.00 Green £408,024.00
Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 1) (Combined Authority) |£0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £13,836.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £13,836.00
Bradford to Shipley Corridor £47,900,000.00 £47,900,000.00 £3,979,000.00 £2,153,219.00 £619,781.00 £885,247.00 £102,151.00 £987,398.00 Green/Amber | [£3,140,617.00
Calder Valley Line - Elland Station £0.00 £2,638,197.00 £700,153.00 £251,373.00 £319,000.00 £275,882.00 £93,433.00 £369,315.00 Green £620,688.00
Calder Valley Line - Elland Station (Combined Authority) £0.00 £18,310,000.00 £1,434,595.00 £423,570.79 £2,238,000.00 £435,174.25 £1,703,231.56 £2,138,405.81 Amber £2,561,976.60
Castleford Growth Corridor Scheme £37,520,000.00 £6,870,000.00 £1,839,000.00 £222,314.04 £1,000,010.00 £40,017.91 £441,083.40 £481,101.31 Amber £703,415.35
Castleford Growth Corridor Scheme (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £19,421.12 £0.00 £0.00 -£19,421.12 -£19,421.12 £0.00
Castleford Station Gateway £4,500,000.00 £2,836,000.00 £2,836,000.00 £780,786.08 £1,769,786.00 £1,642,523.37 £412,690.67 £2,055,214.04 Green £2,836,000.12
CityConnect Phase 3 Canals £0.00 £1,363,000.00 £60,000.00 £0.00 £60,000.00 £36,282.97 £23,717.03 £60,000.00 Green/Amber | |£60,000.00
CityConnect Phase 3 Castleford to Wakefield Greenway Phase 4 £0.00 £356,686.00 £356,686.00 £0.00 £0.00 £54,569.53 £302,116.47 £356,686.00 Green £356,686.00
CityConnect Phase 3 Castleford to Wakefield Greenway Phase 4
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £15,000.00 £15,000.00 £15,000.00 £0.00 £34,602.03 -£34,602.03 £0.00 £15,000.00
CityConnect Phase 3 Combined Authority Development £0.00 £2,057,000.00 £380,000.00 £112,752.57 £0.00 £63,105.62 £25,000.00 £88,105.62 £200,858.19
CityConnect Phase 3 Cooper Bridge £0.00 £1,862,000.00 £350,000.00 £65,941.00 £284,059.00 £92,959.64 £477,040.36 £570,000.00 Amber £635,941.00
CityConnect Phase 3 Huddersfield Town Centre £0.00 £1,291,000.00 £180,000.00 £141,506.74 £0.00 £124,213.47 £50,000.00 £174,213.47 Green £315,720.21
CityConnect Phase 3 Huddersfield Town Centre (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£76,506.74 £0.00 -£9,213.47 £0.00 -£9,213.47 -£85,720.21
CityConnect Phase 3 Leeds £0.00 £6,355,000.00 £6,355,000.00 £54,645.92 £0.00 £3,181,015.08 £2,419,339.00 £5,600,354.08 Green/Amber_| [£5,655,000.00
CityConnect Phase 3 Leeds Development £0.00 £112,970.00 £112,970.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,779.00 £100.00 £12,879.00 £12,879.00
CityConnect Phase 3 West Yorkshire Combined Authority £0.00 £500,000.00 £500,000.00 £93,163.21 £20,000.00 £137,108.12 £28,299.68 £165,807.80 £258,971.01
Clifton Moor Park and Ride £9,760,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 and Cutler Heights [£0.00 £10,010,000.00 £670,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £55,000.00 £93,000.00 £148,000.00 £148,000.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton
Road - Cross Lane (12) £2,500,000.00 £235,300.17 £180,000.00 £235,300.17 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber | |£235,300.17
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton
Road - Cross Lane (12) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£121,090.39 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£121,090.39
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton
Road - Horton Grange Road (15) £3,150,000.00 £4,210,000.00 £809,007.00 £711,459.00 £163,492.00 £165,253.00 £0.00 £165,253.00 Green/Amber | |£876,712.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Great Horton
Road - Horton Grange Road (15) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£19,951.00 £0.00 £19,951.00 £0.00 £19,951.00 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Thornton Road -
Toller Lane (10) £8,500,000.00 £9,660,000.00 £946,670.00 £946,670.00 £234,234.00 £219,933.00 £1,500.00 £221,433.00 Green/Amber | [£1,168,103.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A6177 Thornton Road -
Toller Lane (10) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,505.92 £0.00 -£219,933.00 £0.00 -£219,933.00 -£217,427.08
Corridor Improvement Programme - Bradford - A650 Shipley Airedale -
A647 Leeds Road £10,300,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 [£0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

Z Xlpuaddy

) Wa]| epuaby



9SG

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal West Yorkshire + Transport Fund Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020)

Target

| | 89,701,488

38,527,895

Actual to date

2020/21
2020/2021
" Cumulative Actual
- X . . I~ . Full Funding § Agreed Annual Actual Spend Forecast Spend | Actual & Forecast .

SEP Priority Project Name Original Allocation|Indicative Funding Approval Spe;odzglgir to Forecast 2020/21 202021 2020/21 Spend 2020/21 RAG Rating Total to 2020/21
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A58 - A672 Corridor £6,020,000.00 £4,980,863.00 £991,138.00 £789,956.00 £400,000.00 £106,668.00 £282,711.00 £389,379.00 Green/Amber £1,179,335.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A58 - A672 Corridor
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,226.51 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,226.51
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A629 North - Orange
Street £0.00 £6,100,000.00 £600,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,560.66 £198,813.11 £202,373.77 Green £202,373.77
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A646 - A6033 Corridor [£5,090,000.00 £4,058,084.00 £839,054.00 £682,522.00 £400,000.00 £104,577.00 £143,722.00 £248,299.00 Green/Amber_| |£930,821.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Calderdale - A646 - A6033 Corridor
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,226.51 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £7,226.51
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - A62 Smart Corridor £7,500,000.00 £7,500,000.00 £1,282,000.00 £958,425.00 £500,000.00 £211,120.70 £488,879.30 £700,000.00 Amber £1,658,425.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - A62 Smart Corridor
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£103,425.05 £0.00 £0.00 £103,425.05 £103,425.05 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - A629 - Fenay Lane £0.00 £7,500,000.00 £600,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Holmfirth Town Centre £4,900,000.00 £3,970,000.00 £890,000.00 £250,000.00 £250,000.00 £193,136.69 £101,712.00 £294,848.69 Green/Amber £544,848.69
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Holmfirth Town Centre
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Huddersfield Southern
Corridors £8,200,000.00 £8,200,000.00 £2,534,000.00 £533,154.00 £500,000.00 £1,500,378.56 £257,977.00 £1,758,355.56 Amber £2,291,509.56
Corridor Improvement Programme - Kirklees - Huddersfield Southern
Corridors (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - A58 Roundhay Road £0.00 £9,530,000.00 £1,259,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - A61N Scott Hall Road £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - A660 Headingley Hills £0.00 £825,807.00 £825,807.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Dawsons Corner £15,000,000.00 £14,480,000.00 £2,607,000.00 £863,291.00 £300,000.00 £293,185.00 £96,100.00 £389,285.00 Amber £1,252,576.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Dyneley Arms £8,000,000.00 £2,480,000.00 £775,000.00 £445,892.00 £500,000.00 £161,946.00 £268,700.00 £430,646.00 Green/Amber £876,538.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Dyneley Arms (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £26,453.96 £0.00 -£26,453.96 £0.00 -£26,453.96 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Leeds - Fink Hill £950,000.00 £3,980,000.00 £919,000.00 £372,407.00 £300,003.00 £164,825.00 £75,000.00 £239,825.00 Green/Amber | |£612,232.00
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - A638 Doncaster Road  |£0.00 £6,300,000.00 £560,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,033.05 £70,000.00 £74,033.05 Green £74,033.05
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - A639 Park Road £0.00 £570,000.00 £570,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,676.63 £70,000.00 £73,676.63 Green £73,676.63
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - A650 Newton Bar £4,230,000.00 £9,268,000.00 £350,165.00 £283,482.12 £2,167,610.00 £94,191.99 £99,939.27 £194,131.26 Amber £477,613.38
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - A650 Newton Bar
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£78,682.12 £0.00 £51,173.01 £0.00 £51,173.01 -£27,509.11
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - Owl Lane £2,560,000.00 £54,062.36 £75,000.00 £54,062.59 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £54,062.59
Corridor Improvement Programme - Wakefield - Owl Lane (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Corridor Improvement Programme (Phase 1) £0.00 £2,976,000.00 £8,200.00 £8,200.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £8,200.00
Corridor Improvement Programme (Phase 2) £0.00 £650,000.00 £650,000.00 £280,564.00 £369,436.00 £284,321.00 £85,115.00 £369,436.00 £650,000.00
Corridor Improvement Programme (Phase 3) £0.00 £3,682,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Glasshoughton Southern Link Road £7,090,000.00 £5,968,000.00 £5,968,000.00 £4,327,023.07 £1,923,998.00 £819,480.16 £50,526.37 £870,006.53 Green £5,197,029.60
Glasshoughton Southern Link Road (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £972,899.31 -£1,255,920.00 -£819,480.16 -£153,419.15 -£972,899.31 £0.00
Halifax Station G £10,600,000.00 £10,600,000.00 £2,165,000.00 £1,236,893.56 £649,110.00 £334,545.47 £0.00 £334,545.47 Green/Amber | [£1,571,439.03
Halifax Station Gateway (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,917.39 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,917.39
Harrogate Road - New Line £4,920,000.00 £7,665,000.00 £7,665,000.00 £4,695,444.00 £1,928,534.00 £1,411,048.00 £456,569.00 £1,867,617.00 Green £6,563,061.00
Harrogate Road - New Line (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,716.78 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,716.78
Huddersfield Station G £0.00 £5,050,000.00 £115,000.00 £115,000.00 £240,000.00 £46,653.09 £14,109.00 £60,762.09 Amber £175,762.09
Huddersfield Station Gateway (Phase 1) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £599.05 £0.00 -£46,653.09 £0.00 -£46,653.09 -£46,054.04
Huddersfield Station Gateway (Phase 2) £0.00 £5,000,000.00 £22,385.00 £34,214.00 £8,000.00 £373.00 £0.00 £373.00 £34,587.00
Huddersfield Station Gateway (Phase 2) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £18,415.52 £0.00 -£373.00 £0.00 -£373.00 £18,042.52
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package £36,500,000.00 £26,300,000.00 £5,274,000.00 £2,619,258.00 £31,900,000.00 £675,638.00 £215,000.00 £890,638.00 Amber £3,509,896.00
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package - Armley Gyratory |£0.00 £40,500,000.00 £3,580,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £205,249.00 £120,000.00 £325,249.00 Amber £325,249.00
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package - Infirmary Street  |£0.00 £8,900,000.00 £8,900,000.00 £1,680,473.00 £0.00 £2,866,745.91 £2,375,341.00 £5,242,086.91 Green/Amber | [£5,734,232.91
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package - Infirmary Street
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£1,680,473.00 £0.00 £1,680,473.00 £0.00 £1,680,473.00 £0.00
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package - Meadow Lane £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Leeds City Centre Network and Interchange Package - Regent Street £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £12,000,000.00 £12,000,000.00 Green/Amber | [£12,000,000.00
Leeds ELOR and North Leeds Outer Ring Road £73,260,000.00 £90,330,000.00 £90,330,000.00 £37,492,403.00 £26,970,000.00 £21,558,697.00 £10,062,749.00 £31,621,446.00 Amber £69,113,849.00
Leeds ELOR and North Leeds Outer Ring Road (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £10,961,155.70 -£11,792,371.00 -£10,960,339.00 £0.00 -£10,960,339.00 £816.70
Leeds Inland Port £0.00 £3,170,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Leeds Station Gateway - Leeds Integrated Station Masterplan £400,000.00 £400,000.00 £400,000.00 £338,691.58 £61,308.00 £21,300.00 £0.00 £21,300.00 Green £359,991.58
Leeds Station Gateway - New Station Street £1,590,000.00 £2,120,000.00 £2,120,000.00 £1,918,684.52 £19,000.00 £307.87 £0.00 £307.87 Green £1,918,992.39
M62 Junction 24A £18,510,000.00 £59,846.00 £70,000.00 £52,679.00 LE0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £52,679.00




LS

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal West Yorkshire + Transport Fund Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020)

Target

89,701,488

38,527,895

Actual to date

2020/21
2020/2021
" Cumulative Actual
SEP Priority Project Name Original Allocation|Indicative Funding FL’JAIIPF;;S\?;TQ Spend prior to Fﬁ?;::{gggglazll Ac;"[?zloslgfnd Fore;gzsééfend Ag::rl]g‘;ggéiﬁ RAG Rating Total to 2020/21
2020/21
Mirfield to Dewsbury to Leeds (M2D2L) £12,510,000.00 £12,500,000.00 £535,000.00 £306,131.00 £1,850,001.00 £144,750.57 £378,249.43 £523,000.00 Amber £829,131.00
Mirfield to Dewsbury to Leeds (M2D2L) (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,588.24 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,588.24
Parking Extensions at Rail Stations (PEARS) £0.00 £0.00 £138,000.00 £137,997.00 £0.00 -£137,997.00 £0.00 -£137,997.00 Green £0.00
Priority 4b - Over-programming £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Apperley Bridge £1,200,000.00 £1,200,000.00 £113,100.00 £0.00 £113,100.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Ben Rhydding £2,100,537.00 £2,080,000.00 £150,000.00 £0.00 £150,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Fitzwilliam £700,000.00 £492,499.45 £492,499.45 £492,499.45 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £492,499.45
Rail Parking Package - Fitzwilliam (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Garforth £830,000.00 £1,129,278.00 £1,129,278.00 £977,458.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber | |£977,458.00
Rail Parking Package - Guiseley £7,000,000.00 £6,970,000.00 £143,000.00 £0.00 £143,000.00 £16,423.00 £6,577.00 £23,000.00 Amber £23,000.00
Rail Parking Package - Hebden Bridge £650,000.00 £884,445.00 £884,445.00 £191,801.93 £692,643.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £191,801.93
Rail Parking Package - Mirfield A £310,000.00 £220,059.31 £220,059.31 £220,059.31 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £220,059.31
Rail Parking Package - Moorthorpe £1,100,000.00 £905,551.00 £905,551.00 £125,057.00 £653,494.00 £37,520.14 £0.00 £37,520.14 Amber £162,577.14
Rail Parking Package - Mytholmroyd £3,640,000.00 £3,952,000.00 £3,952,000.00 £1,057,846.00 £2,370,004.00 £2,185,722.52 £708,431.48 £2,894,154.00 Green/Amber_| [£3,952,000.00
Rail Parking Package - Normanton £1,440,000.00 £2,314,000.00 £2,314,000.00 £0.00 £1,440,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Outwood £1,100,000.00 £1,540,000.00 £210,000.00 £126,531.10 £549,857.00 £57,510.86 £45,992.38 £103,503.24 Amber £230,034.34
Rail Parking Package - Outwood (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£50,228.11 £0.00 £50,228.11 £0.00 £50,228.11 £0.00
Rail Parking Package - Shipley £2,550,000.00 £2,550,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £300,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £0.00
Rail Parking Package - South Elmsall £610,000.00 £604,604.00 £604,604.00 £604,604.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £604,604.00
Rail Parking Package - Steeton and Silsden £2,530,000.00 £4,630,800.00 £4,630,800.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,665.68 £0.00 £3,665.68 Amber £3,665.68
Rail Parking Package (Phase 1) £0.00 £2,922,563.00 £1,701,000.00 £1,310,560.33 £270,190.00 £128,550.59 £270,194.00 £398,744.59 Green £1,709,304.92
Rail Parking Package (Phase 2) £0.00 £23,330,000.00 £2,016,000.00 £118,033.87 £177,496.00 £3,706.00 £0.00 £3,689.00 £121,722.87
South East Bradford Access Road £46,310,000.00 £46,300,000.00 £1,304,000.00 £203,877.00 £136,568.00 £122,310.00 £35,538.00 £157,848.00 Green/Amber | |£361,725.00
South East Bradford Access Road (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,375.12 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £4,375.12
Thorpe Park Station £10,060,000.00 £10,050,000.00 £500,000.00 £286,967.67 £0.00 £2,992.06 £0.00 £2,992.06 £289,959.73
Transformational - A6120 Leeds Northern Outer Ring Road
Improvements £0.00 £392,500.00 £392,500.00 £202,528.00 £189,972.00 £65,566.00 £124,406.00 £189,972.00 Green £392,500.00
Transformational - Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 2) £0.00 £512,000.00 £512,000.00 £71,956.00 £21,136.00 £68,980.00 £0.00 £68,980.00 Green £140,936.00
Transformational - Bradford Interchange Station Gateway (Phase 2)
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Transformational - Bradford Transport Model £0.00 £367,000.00 £367,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 (blank) £0.00
Transformational - Kirklees Transport Model £167,000.00 £167,000.00 £167,000.00 £133,050.16 £33,950.00 £33,949.84 £0.00 £33,949.84 Green/Amber | |£167,000.00
Transformational - LCR Inclusive Growth Corridor Plans £0.00 £2,430,000.00 £2,395,000.00 £1,208,291.18 £800,000.00 £503,113.99 £303,400.01 £806,514.00 Amber £2,014,805.18
Transformational - Leeds Transport Model £0.00 £500,000.00 £500,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £188,275.00 £137,855.00 £326,130.00 Amber £326,130.00
Transformational - NE Calderdale Transformational Programme Study £0.00 £400,000.00 £400,000.00 £258,815.00 £141,185.00 £22,294.00 £23,882.00 £46,176.00 Amber £304,991.00
Transformational - North Kirklees Orbital Route Feasibility Study £0.00 £248,000.00 £248,000.00 £202,043.00 £45,957.00 £4,853.00 £41,104.00 £45,957.00 Green/Amber_| |£248,000.00
Transformational - North Kirklees Orbital Route Feasibility Study
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,588.24 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £9,588.24
Transformational - Programme £0.00 £2,304,500.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Transformational - South Featherstone Link Road Feasibility Study £284,000.00 £284,000.00 £284,000.00 £284,000.00 £80,941.00 -£87,569.68 £0.00 -£87,569.68 Green/Amber_| |£196,430.32
Transformational - South Featherstone Link Road Feasibility Study
(Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£58,171.50 £0.00 £0.00 £80,941.11 £80,941.11 £22,769.61
Transformational - West Yorkshire Mass Transit £0.00 £4,600,000.00 £2,041,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £436,600.00 £436,600.00 Green £436,600.00
Transformational - York Northern Outer Ring Road Dualling Feasibility
Study £300,000.00 £295,000.00 £295,000.00 £295,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £295,000.00
Transforming Cities Fund Development Funding £0.00 £3,000,000.00 £3,000,000.00 £1,263,273.56 £0.00 -£731,375.88 -£531,897.68 -£1,263,273.56 Green/Amber | |£0.00
Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 1) - Kirkgate £5,400,000.00 £5,556,000.00 £5,556,000.00 £5,556,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.44 £0.44 Green £5,556,000.44
Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 1) - Kirkgate (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 2) - Ings Road £3,360,000.00 £4,530,000.00 £270,000.00 £106,758.25 £603,200.00 £23,698.87 £30,000.00 £53,698.87 Green £160,457.12
Wakefield City Centre Package (Phase 2) - Ings Road (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £23,804.57 £0.00 -£20,862.48 £0.00 -£20,862.48 £2,942.09
Wakefield Eastern Relief Road £29,400,000.00 £37,593,000.00 £37,593,000.00 £36,386,191.17 £11,500.00 £1,206,808.80 £0.00 £1,206,808.80 Green £37,592,999.97
Wakefield Eastern Relief Road (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £1,692.20 £0.00 -£1,692.20 £0.00 -£1,692.20 £0.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC £7,260,000.00 £450,000.00 £450,000.00 £328,240.00 £87,490.00 £70,507.00 £51,253.00 £121,760.00 Amber £450,000.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Bradford £0.00 £632,157.00 £632,157.00 £340,029.00 £292,128.00 £275,724.00 £16,404.00 £292,128.00 Green £632,157.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Calderdale £0.00 £351,424.00 £351,424.00 £0.00 £267,560.00 £0.00 £42,557.00 £42,557.00 Green/Amber | |£42,557.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Kirklees £0.00 £586,954.00 £586,954.00 £204,621.00 £382,333.00 £86,578.55 £195,754.45 £282,333.00 Green £486,954.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Leeds £0.00 £1,513,539.00 £1,513,539.00 £66,104.00 £1,147,430.00 £65,349.00 £299,089.00 £364,438.00 Green/Amber | |£430,542.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Wakefield £0.00 £759,804.00 £759,804.00 £0.00 £670,920.00 £122,166.58 £266,053.16 £388,219.74 Green £388,219.74
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase A) - Wakefield (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £75,000.00 £0.00 -£75,000.00 £0.00 -£75,000.00 £0.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase B) £0.00 £1,225,000.00 £1,225,000.00 £131,000.00 £1,094,000.00 £229,718.00 £300,282.00 £530,000.00 Green/Amber | |£661,000.00
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase B2) £0.00 £917,000.00 £917,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber_| |£0.00




859

2020/21 Q3 Growth Deal West Yorkshire + Transport Fund Financial Dashboard (to 31/12/2020)

Target | |

89,701,488

38,527,895

Actual to date

2020/21
2020/2021
" Cumulative Actual
- X L . I~ . Full Funding § Agreed Annual Actual Spend Forecast Spend | Actual & Forecast .
SEP Priority Project Name Original Allocation|Indicative Funding Spend prior to RAG Rating Total to 2020/21
Approval 2020/21 Forecast 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 Spend 2020/21
West Yorkshire Integrated UTMC (Phase C) £0.00 £1,203,000.00 £1,203,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £156,548.00 £230,000.00 £386,548.00 £386,548.00
West Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund Delivery £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £3,593,257.87 £0.00 £283,366.25 £85,000.00 £368,366.25 Green £3,961,624.12
York Central Access Road and Station Access Improvements £27,000,000.00 £37,320,000.00 £3,280,000.00 £2,427,909.00 £2,000,001.00 £163,379.47 £3,040,000.00 £3,203,379.47 Green/Amber £5,631,288.47
York City Centre Access Improvements £7,200,000.00 £8,100,000.00 £355,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road £37,600,000.00 £2,450,000.00 £2,450,000.00 £2,450,000.00 £490,000.00 £858,577.71 £450,000.00 £1,308,577.71 Green/Amber | |£3,758,577.71
York Northern Outer Ring Road - Future Phases £0.00 £26,303,419.00 £0.00 £0.00 £500,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber_| |£0.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 1 (Wetherby Road) £0.00 £3,865,581.00 £3,865,581.00 £3,852,365.00 £13,216.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green £3,852,365.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 2 (Monks Cross) £0.00 £3,585,000.00 £3,585,000.00 £142,341.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Amber £142,341.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 2 (Monks Cross) (Combined
Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,257,659.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £2,257,659.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road - Phase 3 £0.00 £2,174,000.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 Green/Amber_| |£0.00
York Northern Outer Ring Road (Combined Authority) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 -£858,577.71 -£450,000.00 -£1,308,577.71 -£858,577.71
£934,509,145.00 £89,701,488.00  £38,527,895.42  £44526,049.99  £83,054,328.41




6S

LEP Hame Loeds City Rogicn LES

This Cusrtee:

Growth Deal Dashboard

Dulbenrabies Progress.
Fiasncial aar
e T T N N - T - I - S |
] E- | [ I N T T | N T
[l o) | a3 | £l | 340 | im0 |
- ST T S N S T L | - T LGF Oumarm ]
B Fm A [ £ S mrain [ €
318 [T aTes S0 - o ) [ [T
5 [ EE} ] =
34,336 TEAT ERZL] 5
24,336 T ENIE e EECF] E EEFY] (T THES
[} [ oe 1o 0o woirs 2 ) £ ruomsale ssaseis I3
~ Appeericani nckied Wi b e S 19 T017 o5 T I
[ wrsmm T [ aam T e T - T
| s | | s200 | amw | a |
voc | oam | [ woes | ow | - I
T (] T [] T == T ] T - T
I ] I ] I - s | aE |
I - I - I | [ - I
TR - § [ &8 [ A | - T
- [ 68 | ee | um | - I
T | [T | 188 | a4 | s | - I

[r— [T
Tacking Fusl Povesy {Phees 123 64)

|Forscast.

vananze

]

[Tea Lo LGE

T r—
[Soncars s an compiemng san

o Pk, o aspar
Fhceacn o e P, AP, Al B . AOME I S P, ARt T A8 G P

o vt e o L ki i B0 . pemaars 1 -3 e B
et

e e o C74 5 i agairas & Forecs of £S5 15 il W
neend Teagh armec

wad on e,

ot e b o Trmae ol i e kst LI s e Corcrs gt sl i compogemmnt
[ raacfin "L G 1 )L % 2 T Sitea - Caicascin

Cafice Gusmrvess k. - Sgraicant Ssiey e 10 8 B - W L Park Eatmman - Trars .
e s o 1 b . [LMS I 8) A Do ALemeiidny s it o oo ke P s ot T 4o e il e et o . 2k e
Eusdcinga -

ot REE)

BT -Procjact cimym b SR+ aiheuph e aring bekc ey, sniosly i parc il LIGF adiocsien. (LEFLEE 4+ Biacioas Hartage i Poscs - baey
o mpen. (LGRLEE: Fan - oo o covma baraar et Cormpista Sy RAarch 2001 Ay eieys i be et R3S A FTLAC) B Ch granta

ety e

Tra foliwing mecjecrs hume besn kdentitus s rec or ambacred

Rt (1L 570 A2 mact
[ rmmariins pLaFLEC
S - Crvace: samemamat oo smcwacia

S0 L anda e Pt - Peact s aions

n.mnnmwm—mmum G ) e M CPCE D8 S
- o 1 s, Frejact Sponans nove Sasking SRcHtar Amaa ¥ msen, (LSRG Thoms Pk

Sacticn 151 Officer Approves

[Feame Rrges Tapor

P e———

€ Xlpuaddy

) Wa]| epuaby



09

Sets Fatharsiora Lisk A - Fuastaty Sk
Crttnt Aoae

Growth Deal Dashboard




Agenda Iltem 8

Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

Report to: Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership Board (LEP Board)

Date: 28 April 2021

Subject: Governance arrangements

Director: Angela Taylor, Director of Corporate Services

Author: Caroline Allen, Head of Legal and Governance Services

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 To advise the LEP Board of changes to Leeds City Council’s LEP Board
member and substitute member.

1.2  To consider a recommendation to extend both the Board and advisory group
term of office of the LEP Board Member, Joanna Robinson.

1.3 To consider a recommendation to appoint the LEP Board member Mandy
Ridyard to the Business Innovation and Growth Panel (or its successor) and to
recommend such appointment to the Combined Authority.

1.4 To provide LEP Board members with the outcome and recommendations of
the review of the current LEP Chair’s final year of tenure and proposals for the
recruitment of a new Chair.

1.5 To advise the LEP Board of proposals for changes to be made to the
Combined Authority’s decision-making arrangements to better reflect the
changed role and responsibilities of the Authority following the appointment of
a Mayor for West Yorkshire, due to be considered by the Combined Authority
at its meeting on 22 April.

2. Information
Leeds City Council — Appointment

2.1 Following a change in leadership at Leeds City Council, the Council have

provided formal notification of a change in their appointment to the LEP Board
as follows:
e Councillor James Lewis to replace Councillor Judith Blake as the LEP
Board member,
e Councillor Debra Coupar to replace Councillor James Lewis as the
substitute LEP Board member.

61



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Board Membership

Joanna Robinson was appointed to the LEP Board in 2016. She serves as the
Board’s SME representative and as Chair of the Business Communications
Group, an advisory group of the LEP Board, which coordinates effective
communications between the LEP and the business community. Joanna’s LEP
Board term of office is shortly coming to an end, and it is proposed that this
term is extended until the LEP Board Annual meeting in June 2021 as a
reflection of the valuable contribution she is making to the work of the Board,
the Business Communications Group and the LEP as a whole, and the
importance of ensuring continuity whilst initial mayoral combined authority
work is ongoing.

Advisory Panel Membership

The Combined Authority currently appoints a number of advisory committees
(panels) which advise both the Combined Authority and the LEP.

The LEP Constitution provides that the Combined Authority may appoint any
member of the LEP Board to be a member of a Combined Authority panel or
committee.

Membership of the panels includes members of the LEP Board and other
private sector representatives (as well as local authority representatives from
partner councils).

Due to a recent private sector member resignation on the Business Innovation
& Growth Panel, expressions of interest have been sought from existing private
sector members. To this end, an expression of interest was received from a
private sector LEP Board member. The LEP Board is therefore asked to
nominate the following representative to the following panel:

Board Member: Proposed panel appointment:

Mandy Ridyard Business Innovation & Growth Panel

LEP Chair Review

The Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships review (2018), resulted in
actions being taken to recruit new members to the LEP Board / advisory
panels, and a change to the LEP’s geography.

In February 2020, it was agreed that given the exceptional circumstances of
the review and ongoing negotiations to agree a devolution deal for West
Yorkshire, the current LEP Chair’s tenure would be extended for up to two
years to the Annual Meeting in 2022. At the end of this two-year period, the
maximum nine-year term of the Chair will have been reached and a new LEP
chair appointed.

62


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-enterprise-partnerships

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

The second year of the extended term is subject to a light-touch review in the
context of the future role of LEPs and future role profile of the next LEP Chair.
The terms of reference for the review were agreed at the February LEP Board.
The review considered:

e the extension of the current Chair’s tenure and

e the potential future role of a new LEP Chair.

The review involved a mix of desk-based research and interviews / group
discussions. The interviews were structured around a short set of questions
which were circulated to participants in advance. Representatives from the
following groups were consulted:

e West Yorkshire Chief Executives and senior Local Authority

representatives

e West Yorkshire Council Leaders

e Private sector LEP Panel members

e Senior Civil Servants.

Interviews conducted as part of the review were undertaken in the context of
an uncertain period for both Leeds City Region and LEPs more generally. The
future role of LEPs will not become clear until at least the outcome of the
Government review is reported in summer. The impact of Covid-19 will
continue to pose challenges for the region as the country emerges from
restrictions. The election of a Mayor for West Yorkshire will lead to a period of
transition for the LEP as new ways of working are established and new
relationships built.

The review found widespread recognition that the LEP has performed strongly
under challenging circumstances including the impact of Covid-19 and
implementation of the outcomes of the Strengthening Local Enterprise
Partnerships review. The LEP has continued to build on its strong reputation
and has embedded the approach to tackle the climate emergency and drive
inclusive growth at the heart of activities. The enhanced diversity of the LEP
Board was highlighted as a strength and asset for the region.

The role of the current LEP Chair in driving the agenda for economic recovery
while promoting a compelling narrative for the region was praised, as were the
Chair’s strong links locally, regionally, and nationally. The Chair was seen to
have put the LEP on a strong footing on which to build for the future.

While there are considerable challenges ahead, there are also opportunities
for the LEP to build a more partnership-based approach which draws on a
diverse range of private sector members and enhances the contribution of
members with deeper engagement and clearly defined roles. The full review is
attached as Appendix 1 of this report. In the light of the review findings the
following recommendations are proposed:

e The LEP Chair remains in post for the remainder of the agreed tenure,

63


https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g960/Public%20reports%20pack%2024th-Feb-2021%2014.00%20Leeds%20City%20Region%20Enterprise%20Partnership%20Board.pdf?T=10

2.15

2.16

3.1

4.1

e The LEP takes a proactive role working with private sector members to
engage with the Government’s review of LEPs,

e Following the outcome of the Government review, work begins in
partnership with local authorities, LEP Board members, and wider
stakeholders on the scope and role profile for a new LEP chair, and
enhanced LEP engagement from private sector members.

Proposals for changes to be made to the Combined Authority’s decision-
making arrangements

A report is due to be considered by the Combined Authority at its meeting on
22 April which puts forward proposals for changes to be made the Authority’s
formal decision-making arrangements with effect from the Authority’s Annual
meeting on 24 June 2021. A copy of that report and appendices is attached to
this report at Appendix 2 and the Board will be updated verbally on the
outcome of the Combined Authority’s consideration of that report.

Key points from the proposals of relevance for the LEP Board are as follows:

e The close alignment and partnership of the LEP Board and the
Combined Authority is retained with the LEP Chair remaining as a
member of the Combined Authority to provide the voice of business and
the Mayor will also be a member of the LEP Board.

e The advisory panels which currently feed into both the LEP Board and
the Combined Authority are to become decision-making committees of
the Combined Authority with greater responsibility and accountability
(the detail of their terms of reference yet to be finalised)

e The Inclusive Growth Panel is not to be retained as a decision-making
committee, rather its work is to be embedded into the objectives and
the workplans of the other committees. It is recognised that there may
need to be further interim measures required to ensure that inclusive
growth can be effectively embedded as proposed, and further
discussions will need to be held as to the most appropriate form that
should take.

e The four thematic decision-making committees (as successors to
Panels) would be chaired by a Combined Authority member who has
the lead for that area and the Vice Chair for each of these would be a
LEP Board member with voting rights. Current wider private sector
membership would remain as non-voting members together with
advisory ex office representatives.

Tackling the Climate Emergency Implications

Tackling the Climate Emergency will remain a core objective of the LEP and
all panels and committees will contribute towards this aim. There are no other
implications arising from this report.

Inclusive Growth Implications

Under proposals considered by the Combined Authority and reported here,
inclusive growth will be mainstreamed as an objective for all panels and

64


https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19513/Item%209%20-%20MCA%20Committee%20Arrangements.pdf

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1
10.

10.1
(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

committees, to embed this aim fully in all areas of the Combined Authority and
LEP’s work. It is recognised that there may need to be further interim
measures required to ensure that inclusive growth can be effectively
embedded as proposed and further discussions will need to be held as to the
most appropriate form that should take.

Equality & Diversity Implications

Work to implement the recommendations of the LEP Chair Review would be
undertaken in line with the organisation’s Equality and Diversity policy building
on and enhancing the good practice of the Strengthened Local Enterprise
Partnerships Review.

Financial Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Legal Implications

Appointments are subject to any potential changes to governance
arrangements further to the West Yorkshire devolution deal.

Staffing Implications

None.

External Consultees

None.

Recommendations

That the LEP Board:

Notes Leeds City Council’'s changed appointments to the LEP Board

Agrees to extend both the Board and advisory group term of office of Joanna
Robinson until the Board Annual Meeting in June 2021.

Recommends the appointment of Mandy Ridyard to the Business Innovation &
Growth Panel (or its successor committee) for consideration by the Combined
Authority at its next meeting on 24 June 2021.

Agrees that the LEP Chair remains in post for the remainder of the agreed
tenure.

Agrees that the LEP takes a proactive role working with private sector
members to engage with the Government’s review of LEPs.

Agrees that following the outcome of the Government review, work begins in
partnership with local authorities, LEP Board members, and wider

65



stakeholders on the scope and role profile for a new LEP Chair, and enhanced
LEP engagement from private sector members.

(vii)  Considers and comments on the proposals for changes to the Combined
Authority’s decision making arrangements.

11. Background Documents
11.1 None.
12. Appendices
Appendix 1 — LEP Chair Review Full Report

Appendix 2 — Report and Appendices to the Combined Authority on 22 April

66


https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19513/Item%209%20-%20MCA%20Committee%20Arrangements.pdf

Agenda Iltem 8

Appendix 1
Leeds City Region
Enterprise
Partnership

Leeds City Reqgion Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)
Chair Review

Section One: Introduction and background

1.1  This report sets out the outcome and recommendations of the review of the
current LEP Chair’s final year of tenure and proposals for the recruitment of a
new Chair. In the light of the review findings the following recommendations
are proposed:

e The LEP Chair remains in post for the remainder of the agreed tenure,

e The LEP takes a proactive role working with private sector members to
engage with the Government’s review of LEPs,

e Following the outcome of the Government review, work begins in
partnership with local authorities, LEP Board members, and wider
stakeholders on the scope and role profile for a new LEP chair, and
enhanced LEP engagement from private sector members.

1.2 The Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships review (2018), resulted in
actions being taken to recruit new members to the LEP Board / advisory
panels, and a change to the LEP’s geography.

1.3 In February 2020, it was agreed that given the exceptional circumstances of
the review and ongoing negotiations to agree a devolution deal for West
Yorkshire, the current LEP Chair’s tenure would be extended for up to two
years to the Annual Meeting in 2022. At the end of this two-year period, the
maximum nine-year term of the Chair will have been reached and a new LEP
chair appointed.

1.4 The second year of the extended term is subject to a light-touch review in the
context of the future role of LEPs and future role profile of the next LEP chair.
The terms of reference for the review were agreed at the February LEP Board.

1.5 The review considered:
e the extension of the current Chair’s tenure and
e the potential future role of a new LEP chair.

1.6 The review involved a mix of desk-based research and interviews / group
discussions. The interviews were structured around a short set of questions
which were circulated to participants in advance (see Annex 1).
Representatives from the following groups were consulted:

67


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthened-local-enterprise-partnerships
https://westyorkshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g960/Public%20reports%20pack%2024th-Feb-2021%2014.00%20Leeds%20City%20Region%20Enterprise%20Partnership%20Board.pdf?T=10

1.7

e West Yorkshire Chief Executives and Senior Local Authority
representatives

e West Yorkshire Council Leaders

e Private sector LEP panel chairs and Board members

e Senior Civil Servants.

The remainder of this report is structured as follows:

Section Two: Sets out the policy context in which the review took place,
Section Three: Describes feedback from the interviews and group
discussions,

Section Four: Provides conclusions and recommendations for the LEP Board.

Section Two: Policy Context

2.1

Background and contextual issues relating to the ongoing operating
environment for the LEP and the role of the chair both in the short-term and
the long-term were reviewed. The following issues were explored:

Outcome of the Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnership review
The future role of LEPs and upcoming Government review

West Yorkshire Devolution Deal

Health and economic impact of Covid-19

LEP performance.

Each of these is addressed in more detail below.

Outcome of the Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnership review

2.2

2.3

To comply with the requirements of the Local Enterprise Partnerships review,
it was agreed that the Leeds City Region LEP geography would change to
the districts of Bradford, Calderdale, Kirklees, Leeds, and Wakefield, while
retaining the name of Leeds City Region, and strengthening collaborative
arrangements across the functional economic area of the city region.

A recruitment exercise was carried out to ensure that the diversity and
representation stipulations set out in the review were met. The outcome of
this was the appointment of new Board and panel members to strengthen
private sector membership and increase the number of women and members
from Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) backgrounds.

The future role of LEPs and Government review

2.4

The March Budget provided minimal detail on the future role of LEPs. While
capacity funding has been approved for 2021/22, no additional programme
funding has been identified. The Budget did provide further details on the
administration of the Levelling Up Fund (the replacement for Growth Deal
funding) and the UK Community Renewal Fund aimed at supporting
communities to pilot programmes and new approaches as the government
moves towards the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. Both funds are to be

68


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966869/Budget_2021_Print.pdf

2.5

2.6

administered centrally and no formal role for LEPs was identified. While the
future overall role and function of LEPs remains unknown, LEPs will no
longer have responsibility for administering large capital funded projects.

A further Government review of LEPs was announced in the guidance
released as part of the Budget:

“We will also be working with local businesses on the future role of Local
Enterprise Partnerships. We want to ensure local businesses have clear
representation and support in their area, in order to drive the recovery.
We will work with Local Enterprise Partnerships over the coming months,
with a view to announcing more detailed plans ahead of summer recess.
This will also include consideration of Local Enterprise Partnership
geographiest.”

Budget announcements and the LEP review coincided with the disbanding of
the Industrial Strategy Council and move away from Industrial Strategy
policy. A date is awaited for the publication of the Devolution White Paper
which is expected to outline local organisational roles in relation to economic
development.

West Yorkshire Devolution Deal

2.7

2.8

The ‘minded to’ devolution deal agreed in March 2020, was made into law in
January, with a mayoral election taking place in May. Becoming a Mayoral
Combined Authority and the new powers and funding this brings will lead to a
period of change for the LEP. This will have a significant impact on the role of
the LEP Chair.

Following the mayoral election there will be a period of transition for the LEP
as new ways of working are implemented and new relationships built. This
transition will be taking place at the same time as the future role of LEPs is
resolved (see above). Clarity of future roles and responsibilities in particular of
the new LEP chair is likely to remain uncertain until the outcome of the
Government review (due before the summer recess).

Covid-19 Pandemic

2.9

2.10

The ongoing health and economic risks from Covid-19 will continue to impact
on our region over the coming months. It will remain a challenging time for
many businesses. Infection levels remain high relative to the UK average,
and parts of West Yorkshire have been under restrictions for longer than
almost anywhere else in the country.

There is still uncertainty in terms of the easing of economic restrictions, and
the full impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the economy. While the
Government has announced a ‘roadmap’ of dates for reopening, these are
dependent upon a series of conditions being met. The Budget did not provide
any additional funding for Economic Recovery Plans. There is therefore a

! New levelling up and community investments - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

69


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/new-levelling-up-and-community-investments

need to continue engaging with Government over the coming months to
make the case for the additional support required in the Region.

Annual Performance Review

2.11

The LEP has focused on economic recovery over the last year. The
coordination of the Economic Recovery Plan has been undertaken in
partnership with the private sector ensuring business voices played a
prominent role in development. The LEP has been able to respond flexibly to
the Covid-19 pandemic adapting business support and skill provision
accordingly. The LEP has maintained day-to-day activities including a full
schedule of advisory panel and Board meetings via an online platform. The
Annual Performance Review (APR) took place in February, highlighting the
strong performance of the LEP over the previous 12 months. The APR
showed that delivery is on track for Growth Deal and Getting Building Fund
projects up to March 2022. The LEP Board met all Government criteria year-
on-year in relation to the APR.

Section Three: Participant Feedback

3.1

Key findings of the face-to-face and group interviews are grouped under
discussion themes emerging from the interview questions.

LEP Performance

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Several participants noted that the LEP could not be reviewed against formal
performance objectives at this time. In this context, participants were pleased
with the performance of the LEP and the contribution it made. In a challenging
year, the LEP has been able to consolidate its positive reputation with
Government. Participants recognised the scale of the challenge faced
including the outcome of the Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships
review, the impact of Covid-19, and increased workload. The ability to adapt to
changing circumstances and the focus on economic recovery was viewed as
well managed, demonstrating an agile and flexible approach.

As well as responding to the challenges of Covid-19, participants were positive
about the way in which inclusive growth and tackling the climate emergency
continued to be embedded within the work programme of the LEP.

Participants welcomed the diversity of the LEP Board with increased
representation of women and members from BAME backgrounds. The
enhanced diversity of business background was noted as contributing to
productive conversations and increased diversity of thought.

The role of the Chair during a challenging year was praised by many
participants. This included the Chair’s role on the Economic Recovery Board
ensuring the LEP’s representation complimented that of wider partners and
added value where it could be most effective. The Chair’s level of engagement,
clear narrative, and attention to detail were highlighted as strengths.

70



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Communicating a clear and consistent narrative for the region was identified
as a strength of the LEP, the Chair was seen to play a key role ensuring that
partners locally and nationally engaged with the narrative. Participants felt the
Chair was able to successfully manage and effectively balance engagement
with partners at the right spatial level for the issue concerned. The LEP Chair’s
connections including with the NP11 and Government were cited as beneficial
for the region.

Participants recognised both the challenge and opportunity as the role of the
LEP and the LEP Chair evolves within a Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA).
It was agreed that clear roles and transparency of process to make the most of
the devolution opportunities is needed. Embedding a strong business voice
and partnership approach within MCA structures is a priority for the future.

It was felt that more could be done to utilise the expertise and diversity in
thought of LEP Board members to influence policy development and delivery
at an earlier stage. Greater engagement on activities beyond formal meetings
would further strengthen the work of the LEP and maximise the benefits of
business engagement and private sector expertise.

Being able to build on the agile approach demonstrated in response to the
continued disruption of Covid-19 is likely to be an ongoing challenge. Key
sectors of the economy will face difficulties as the region emerges from
restrictions and new ways of working will need to be understood and
responded to by the LEP.

Participants highlighted key policy agendas of the LEP presenting challenges
in both the short and long-term reflecting future trends and responding to
current events. Tackling the climate emergency will require new ways of
thinking and adjustments in delivery to meet the ambitious targets for carbon
reduction. New ways of approaching digital infrastructure and transport will
also be required and these issues will need to be understood in the context of
the LEPs agenda to drive inclusive growth.

The current Chair was seen to have built a strong legacy with important links
at local, regional, and national level. Building on this legacy and continuing to
step-up the diversity of the LEP Board and empowering its members to
effectively shape agendas should be central to the role of the new LEP Chair.
The role should facilitate a strong partnership approach, ensuring more
individual engagement from LEP members building stronger links into the
business community, working with politicians across parties, and forging
strong links to the Mayor. Participants emphasised the need for a transition
period and handover to utilise the expertise of the current Chair.

Given the ongoing uncertainty in Government policy and the multiple
challenges of climate change, Brexit, and post-pandemic impacts, recruiting a
new Chair who can take an agile and flexible approach to the role was cited as
important. A Chair with relevant expertise to enable impact on the climate
emergency and inclusive growth agenda was also raised as key.

71



3.13

It was agreed that the role of the new chair will be more clearly defined
following the outcome of the Government’s LEP review (see above) and a
recruitment process should be kept on hold until then. Building on private
sector members desire to make a difference to the region through expanded
and deeper engagement with LEP activities, an agreed renumeration package
for the new chair is likely to reflect a sharing of responsibility and broader
engagement of LEP Board members. It was acknowledged that the Chair’s
role profile and renumeration would be looked at again with several private
sector members noting that renumeration was not a key driver for
participation.

Section 4: Conclusion and Recommendations

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Interviews conducted as part of the review were undertaken in the context of
an uncertain period for both Leeds City Region and LEPs more generally. The
future role of LEPs will not become clear until the outcome of the Government
review is reported in summer. The impact of Covid-19 will continue to pose
challenges for the region as we emerge from restrictions. The election of a
Mayor for West Yorkshire will lead to a period of transition for the LEP as new
ways of working are established and new relationships built.

The review found widespread recognition that the LEP has performed strongly
under challenging circumstances including the impact of Covid-19 and
implementation of the outcomes of the Strengthening Local Enterprise
Partnerships review. The LEP has continued to build on its strong reputation
and has embedded the approach to tackle the climate emergency and drive
inclusive growth at the heart of activities. The enhanced diversity of the LEP
Board was highlighted as a strength and asset for the region.

The role of the current LEP Chair in driving the agenda for economic recovery
while promoting a compelling narrative for the region was praised. As were the
Chair’s strong links locally, regionally, and nationally. The Chair was seen to
have putt the LEP on a strong footing on which to build for the future.

While there are considerable challenges ahead, there are also opportunities
for the LEP to build a more partnership-based approach which draws on a
diverse range of private sector members and enhances the contribution of
members with deeper engagement and clearly defined roles.

In the light of the review findings the following recommendations are proposed:
The LEP Chair remains in post for the remainder of the agreed tenure,

The LEP takes a proactive role working with private sector members to
engage with the Government’s review of LEPs,

Following the outcome of the Government review, work begins in partnership
with local authorities, LEP Board members, and wider stakeholders on the
scope and role profile for a new LEP chair and enhanced engagement from
private sector members.

72



Annexe One

Interview Questions

Discussion questions shared with participants in advance.
Looking back

1. How do you view the LEP’s performance over the past year?
2. How do you view the role of the Chair within this?

3. What do you consider to be the key strength of the LEP?
Looking forward

4. What do you consider to be the challenges confronting the LEP over the
coming year?

5. How will the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic impact on the Chair’s
role in both the short and long-term?

6. How will the move to becoming a Mayoral Combined Authority / arrival of a

Mayor / Gov't review of LEPs impact on the Chair’s role in both the short and
long-term?

73



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

West
Yorkshire

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY
HELD REMOTELY ON TUESDAY, 9 MARCH 2021

Present:
Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe (Chair) Bradford Council
Councillor Tim Swift MBE (Deputy Calderdale Council
Chair)
Councillor Andy D'Agorne (Substitute) York Council
Councillor James Lewis Leeds City Council
Councillor Stewart Golton Leeds City Councll
Councillor Denise Jeffery Wakefield Council
Councillor Steven Leigh MBE Calderdale Council
Roger Marsh OBE DL Leeds City Region Local Enterprise

Partnership

Councillor Shabir Pandor Kirklees Council
Councillor Rebecca Poulsen Bradford Council

In attendance:
Councillor Kim Groves Chair, Transport Committee
Councillor Peter Harrand Chair, Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Dr Declan Hall Independent Remuneration Panel
Ben Still West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Caroline Allen West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Brian Archer West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Melanie Corcoran West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Dave Pearson West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Alan Reiss West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Angela Taylor West Yorkshire Combined Authority
lan Smyth West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Sarah Bowes West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Alexander Clarke West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Khaled Berroum West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Ruth Chaplin West Yorkshire Combined Authority

92. Chair's Comments
On behalf of the Combined Authority, the Chair congratulated Councillor

James Lewis on becoming Leader of Leeds City Council and welcomed him
to the meeting.

75



93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Keith Aspden.
Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no pecuniary interests declared by Members at the meeting.
Exclusion of the Press and Public

There were no items on the agenda that required the exclusion of the press
and public.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Combined Authority held on 4 February
2021

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority held on 4 February 2021 be approved.

Covid-19 and Economic Recovery

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications on COVID-19 and Economic Recovery.

The report provided an update on the work being undertaken to support the
region to respond to COVID-19 and the development of products and
services in response to the economic impacts of the pandemic.

Members discussed and noted the implications of the recent Budget which
had included additional business support measures and welcomed the
announcement that the UK’s first infrastructure bank will be based in Leeds.

The Authority discussed and endorsed the Economic Recovery Plan
attached at Appendix 1 which had been refreshed in light of the further
impacts the pandemic had had on the economy. The update included the
addition of a fifth proposition on Culture and Creative Industries which had
been developed in partnership with culture leads across local authorities and
details were attached at Appendix 2. It was noted that a summary version of
the Economic Recovery Plan will also be produced.

It was noted that because no direct Government funding had yet been
allocated to the Combined Authority to deliver the Economic Recovery Plan,
the Authority had previously approved gainshare funding to support
immediate priority recovery programmes. Members considered an
additional three proposals which were aimed at creating jobs and new
businesses which were outlined in the report — Entrepreneurship, Net Zero
Carbon Pipeline and Health Innovation. The Authority supported the
programmes in principle and Members discussed the proposal for approval
to be given to the Investment Committee for programmes to pass through
Decision Point 2, totalling no more than the £7 million revenue that remains
unallocated from the Combined Authority’s 2020-21 gainshare allocation. It
was reported that this would enable the programmes to be implemented

76



98.

without delay in the context of the pandemic, and Members were advised
that all of the proposals are consistent with the themes set out in the Covid
Economic Recovery Plan, the draft West Yorkshire Investment Strategy
priorities and will be subject to the Combined Authority’s Assurance
Framework as appropriate.

Resolved:

(@)  That the Combined Authority supports in principle the programmes
outlined the submitted report.

(b) That the Combined Authority delegates to the Investment Committee
the approval for programmes to pass through Decision Point 2,
totalling no more than the £7 million revenue that remains unallocated
from the Combined Authority’s 2020-21 gainshare allocation.

(c)  That the Combined Authority endorses the redrafted West Yorkshire
Economic Recovery Plan, as contained in Appendix 1 and the related
Culture and Creative Industries proposition, as contained in Appendix
2.

(d)  That progress on the delivery of products and services in response to
the economic impacts of the pandemic be noted.

The Single Investment Fund and the West Yorkshire Investment
Strategy

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications and Director, Corporate Services on the Single
Investment Fund and the West Yorkshire Investment Strategy.

It was noted that the Authority was required to create a Single Investment
Fund (SIF) as part of the devolution deal for West Yorkshire. The report
provided an update on progress made in the development of the SIF and the
design of a new West Yorkshire Investment Strategy (WYIS) which outlines
the funding priorities for the SIF. This will facilitate the creation of an
ambitious set of projects and programmes, based on core objectives to
achieve far reaching outcomes in carbon reduction, inclusive growth and the
reduction of inequality, connectivity and infrastructure.

It was reported that the high level operating principles of the SIF had
previously been agreed by the Authority on 27 July 2020 and these were
attached at Appendix 1 and further detail on the draft investment priorities of
the WYIS was attached at Appendix 2.

The Authority considered and endorsed the proposed approach to the SIF,
the design of the West Yorkshire Investment Strategy and the proposed next
steps which were detailed in the report. Further work would be undertaken
to complete the Investment Strategy and this would be brought to a future
meeting.

77



99.

100.

Resolved: That the approach to the Single Investment Fund (SIF), the
design of the West Yorkshire Investment Strategy (WYIS) and the proposed
next steps be endorsed.

West Yorkshire Business Accelerator Fund

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Economic
Services on the West Yorkshire Business Accelerator Fund (WYBAF).

The Authority considered the proposed business case for the creation of a

West Yorkshire Business Accelerator Fund (WYBAF), a new business loan
facility to help deliver revenue, business growth and job creation in light of

the COVID-19 pandemic.

It was reported that the LEP Board had supported the project to create a
successor to the Growing Places Fund (GPF) using the returned GPF loans
of c.£17 million, as core funding for the new loans.

Members discussed the proposed business case and noted the intention for
the fund to be self-sustaining with initial modelling based on a ten year fund.
It was agreed that up to £100,000 from the GPF development funding be
approved for the establishment of a Business Accelerator Fund. This would
be for external legal and tax consultants and specialist consultants to specify
the fund, develop the business case, prepare for the governance, recruit the
necessary resources and procure. This will go through the Assurance
Framework and be brought to the Combined Authority for final approval.

A specialist Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) regulated Fund Manager
would need to be appointed for an initial three year period and appropriate
decision making and delegations would need to be put in place by the
Authority.

Resolved: That up to £100,000 from the Growing Places Fund
development funding be approved to expedite the establishment of a
Business Accelerator Fund, for external legal and tax consultants and
specialist consultants to specify the fund, develop the business case,
prepare for the governance, recruit the necessary resources and that the
Fund will go through the Assurance Framework and Combined Authority for
final approval.

Carbon Impact Assessment

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications on the Carbon Impact Assessment.

The report provided an update on progress in the development of a carbon
impact assessment methodology to allow the impact of proposals on carbon
emissions to be considered in decision making.

The project is divided into five phases and these were outlined in the report.

Members were advised that the project was now part way through the
assessment of existing projects (those currently going through the

/8



101.

102.

assurance process) and detailed recommendations for how carbon impact
should be considered at different stages in the assurance process have
been received from the consultants. The methodology for carbon impact
assessment has been developed and is likely to be refined further as it is
used to assess existing projects.

The importance of collaborative working with partners was highlighted and it
was noted that discussions and briefings have been held with Leaders,
portfolio holders and officers from partner councils.

Resolved: That the report be noted.
Inclusive Growth Framework

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications on the Inclusive Growth Framework.

Members discussed the draft Inclusive Growth Framework, which was
attached at Appendix 1 and noted the working draft data set attached at
Appendix 2. The draft Framework had been developed through discussion
and engagement with public, private and third sector stakeholders and had
also informed the development of the West Yorkshire Economic and
Transport Recovery Plans.

The importance of involving and working with the private sector was
highlighted and it was reported that the LEP Board had endorsed the
Inclusive Growth Framework for adoption as part of the wider Strategic
Economic Framework. The LEP Board had also considered, in principle,
‘early win’ inclusive growth related interventions, noting that any future
funding decisions would rest with the Combined Authority. A pipeline of
potential interventions to drive inclusive growth in the region will be
considered in a future report.

Resolved: That the Inclusive Growth Framework be adopted as part of the
overall Strategic Economic Framework.

Employment & Skills Plan Refresh

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications on the Employment and Skills Framework.

The report provided an overview on the work being done to refresh the
Employment and Skills Plan and summarised the key components. The
strategic context, evidence base and objectives were provided in Appendix
1. Members discussed and endorsed the proposal for the revised
Employment and Skills priorities and indicative actions to be published as a
Framework, as part of the Strategic Economic Framework. This would set
out the strategic aims of the Leeds City Region whilst allowing flexibility to
produce further detail within specific plans.

The framework will be published later this year, following the Mayoral
election.

79



103.

104.

Resolved: That the publication of the Employment and Skills Framework as
part of the Strategic Economic Framework be endorsed.

Innovation Framework

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Policy, Strategy
and Communications on the Innovation Framework being developed as part
of the Strategic Economic Framework.

A copy of the draft Leeds City Region Innovation Framework which builds on
the work carried out for the Local Industrial Strategy was attached at
Appendix 1. Public consultation on the Framework had taken place via the
YourVoice platform and there had also been significant additional input from
members of the West Yorkshire Innovation Network, Busines Innovation &
Growth Panel and the LEP Board.

Members discussed and endorsed the draft which will provide a new
framework for activity and investment in innovation in the region in order
drive economic growth and societal benefit around a shared set of
ambitions.

Resolved: That the Combined Authority endorses and approves the
overarching vision and priorities of the innovation framework and its
positioning as part of the Strategic Economic Framework.

MCA Preparations - governance arrangements

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Corporate
Services on MCA preparations.

The report provided an update on work in relation to the governance
arrangements for the Combined Authority as a mayoral combined authority
(MCA).

Members considered the proposal that the Combined Authority adopt a
formal Constitution to provide a robust and integrated governance
framework. Details were outlined in the report and an indicative outline of
the Constitution was attached at Appendix 1. It was noted that key
arrangements for the Mayor will need to be in place at the start of the
Mayor’s term of office on 10 May 2021 and therefore there will be a phased
approach to adopting the new Constitution.

Members considered key draft constitutional documents for the MCA’s
decision-making arrangements which were attached at Appendices 2-5. It
was noted that these may be subject to revision as other elements of the
new Constitution are developed and it was agreed that authority be
delegated to the Head of Legal and Governance Services to make any
further technical amendments. Arrangements for PCC functions are
currently being developed and these will be brought to the next meeting.

80



105.

The Constitution will be considered as a whole at the Combined Authority’s
Annual Meeting in June 2021.

Resolved:

(@) That the Combined Authority notes that arrangements are being put
in place for decision-making relating to new Non-Mayoral Functions.

(b)  That the Combined Authority notes the timeline set out in paragraph 2
of the report for approving revised governance documents for the
MCA.

(c) That the Combined Authority approves the governance documents
attached as Appendices 2-5 to the report to be of effect from 10 May
2021, and authority be delegated to the Head of Legal and
Governance Services to make any further technical amendments to
these documents, should these be required as the Constitution is
developed.

Future Scrutiny Arrangements

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Corporate
Services on a proposal for new and improved scrutiny arrangements for the
mayoral combined authority.

Members discussed the proposal to increase the number of overview and
scrutiny committees from one to three to cover corporate, economic and
transport scrutiny. Councillor Harrand, Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee advised that the Overview & Scrutiny Committee had reviewed
scrutiny arrangements and a working group had been established to provide
input and had made recommendations regarding a new governance
structure and scrutiny arrangements which differed from the proposals in the
report.

The Authority discussed the Overview & Scrutiny Committee’s original
recommendation and advice outlined in Appendix 1 and considered a
proposal to replace the existing scrutiny arrangements with three overview
and scrutiny committees to cover corporate, economic and transport
scrutiny. As an MCA, it was considered important to increase scrutiny and
involve more members to broaden the engagement and each Committee
would comprise of 16 members, increasing the number of scrutiny members
from 18 to 48.

Due to the proposed change in the scrutiny structure, terms of reference and
membership numbers, it was agreed that an Independent Remuneration
Panel (IRP) be convened to reassess the level of allowances paid to
Combined Authority scrutiny chairs and members. A report would be
brought to the next meeting.

It was noted that additional staff resource will be required to support the

enhanced scrutiny structure and it was agreed that initially an additional
support officer be appointed although this would be considered further as

81



106.

part of a review of the new structure to take place 6 months after the annual
meeting.

The Authority thanked the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the working
group for their review of scrutiny arrangements.

Resolved:

(@)  That the work undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in
reviewing scrutiny arrangements and the Committee’s original
recommendation and advice, as outlined in Appendix 1, be noted.

(b)  That the Combined Authority approves the proposal to replace the
existing scrutiny arrangements with three overview and scrutiny
committees, each consisting of 16 members (3 from each West
Yorkshire constituent authority and 1 from the non-constituent
authority York), and asks officers to progress developing governance
arrangements to enable such appointments to be made at the annual
meeting on 24 June 2021 as outlined in paragraphs 2.6 — 2.11 of the
report.

(c) That the Combined Authority approves the convening of an
Independent Remuneration Panel to reassess the allowances to be
paid to scrutiny chairs and members as outlined in paragraph 2.9 of
the report.

(d)  That the Combined Authority approves the additional investment into
the scrutiny function including additional staff resource and other
potential associated costs as outlined in section 5 of the report.

Governance Arrangements

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Corporate
Services on governance arrangements.

Leeds City Council — Appointments

It was noted that Leeds City Council had advised of the following changes in
their appointments to the Combined Authority:

e Councillor James Lewis to replace Baroness Judith Blake as the
Combined Authority member.

e Councillor Debra Coupar to replace Councillor James Lewis as the
substitute Combined Authority member.

e Councillor Helen Hayden to replace Councillor Lisa Mulherin as the
ex-officio member of the West Yorkshire & York Investment
Committee.

Notification had also been received for a change in Leeds City Council’s

nomination to the Place Panel, and the Authority agreed the appointment of
Councillor Helen Hayden to the Place Panel.

82



107.

Employment & Skills Panel — Advisory Membership

It was reported that at its meeting held on 24 February 2021, the LEP Board
had considered and recommended to the Authority, the appointment of a
non-voting advisory representative from the TUC to the Employment & Skills
Panel. The Authority approved this appointment.

Governance & Audit Committee

The Authority noted the resignation of Andy Clayton, the independent
member and current Chair of the Governance & Audit Committee. It was
agreed that the Head of Legal & Governance Services be authorised to
commence recruitment arrangements for the vacant position. It was noted
that there was one remaining meeting scheduled in the current municipal
year and it would be necessary for a current member of the Governance &
Audit Committee to acts as interim chair for that meeting.

Resolved:

(@) That the Combined Authority notes Leeds City Council’'s change in
appointments to the Combined Authority and the West Yorkshire &
York Investment Committee as detailed in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 of
the report.

(b)  That the Combined Authority approves the appointment of Councillor
Helen Hayden to the Place Panel.

(c) That the Combined Authority approves the appointment of a non-
voting advisory representative from the TUC to the Employment &
Skills Panel.

(d)  That the Combined Authority notes the resignation of Andy Clayton,
independent member of the Governance & Audit Committee and the
arising vacancy for both a member and chair.

(e)  That the Combined Authority authorises the Head of Legal &
Governance Services to progress recruitment and appointment
arrangements to the current independent member vacancy on the
Governance & Audit Committee.

)] That, in respect of any future in-year vacancies, the Combined
Authority delegates arrangements for convening an interview panel
and making subsequent recommendations to the Authority to the
Head of Legal & Governance Services.

() That a current member of the Governance & Audit Committee acts as
interim chair for the remaining meeting of the current municipal year.

Independent Remuneration Panel — West Yorkshire Mayor’s Allowance

83



108.

The Combined Authority considered a report of the Director, Corporate
Services on the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel in respect of
the remuneration of West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s Mayor.

Councillor Stewart Golton took no part in discussion of this item as he was
the Liberal Democrat candidate for the role of West Yorkshire Mayor.

It was noted that the WYCA (Election of Mayor and Functions) Order 2021
specifies that a remuneration must be determined for the West Yorkshire
Mayor and in setting this, the Combined Authority must consider a report by
an independent remuneration panel (IRP).

The IRP review was undertaken in February 2021 by a Panel of three
members, headed by Dr Declan Hall who was in attendance at the meeting
to present the IRP’s report which was attached at Appendix 1. The IRP
recommended that the remuneration of the West Yorkshire elected Mayor
be set at £105,000 and that it be indexed linked to the NJC index, namely
the percentage annual cost of living salary increase as applied each year to
staff. It was noted that the allowance paid by the Combined Authority
should not exceed the amount specified in the recommendation of the IRP.

Dr Hall was thanked for chairing the review and attending the meeting.

Resolved:

(@)  That the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel be noted.

(b)  That the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel’s
report in respect of remuneration for the West Yorkshire Mayor,
including indexation, attached at Appendix 1, be approved.

Minutes for Information

The Combined Authority noted the minutes of the committees and panels

that have been published on the West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s

website since the last meeting.

Resolved: That the minutes of the Combined Authority’s committees and
panels be noted.

84



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2021
	5 Economic Reporting
	Item 5 - Appendix 1

	6 COVID-19
	7 LEP Capital Programme (Investment Committee)
	Item 7 - Appendix 1
	Item 7 - Appendix 2
	Item 7 - Appendix 3

	8 Governance Arrangements
	Item 8 - Appendix 1

	9 Minutes of the Meeting of the Combined Authority held on 9 March 2021

